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e Turnover increased by

8.1% w0 HK$71,739,895

. EEEEN

8.1%=71,739,895# T

e  Profit before taxation exclude listing expenses increased by

3.7% + HK$41,466,412

o BREADG M CREF LR ) E 0

3.7%=41,466,412 % 7T

e Gross loan receivables increased by

52.7% o HK$230,796,415

o RUWERAREEM

52.7%=230,796,415%& JT

Turnover increased by 8.1% to HK$71,739,895 o & EEZE I N8 1% 271,739,895 7T

Profit before taxation exclude listing expenses increased by e B B A s A (T B 38 LT B ) 180
3.7% to HK$41,466,412 3.7% £ 41,466,4127%8 7T

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders decreased by e IR SRR 32% 2
32% to HK$22,705,941 22,705,941 7T

Basic earnings per share is HK7.6 cents . BREXRRBN R7.6HE

Gross loan receivables increased by 52.7% to e W E SR ARFEIE N52.7% &
HK$230,796,415 230,796,415/ T

BENEERERERAT
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e Total amount of pawn loans granted increased by

8.2% to HK$56.7 million

o PTEINEE BEFARFRIE M

8.2%=56,700,0007 T

Total amount of mortgage loans granted increased by

211.0% to HK$119.1 million

PR i8 IB M E KA T B

211.0%=119,100,000% 5¢

Net interest margin for pawn loan increased by

1 4 percentage points 0 43.5%

=

/\BE/\T /?u%i-jju

1.4 B 57 2§ =43.5%

Net interest margin for mortgage loan decreased by

0.2 percentage point © 12.5%

IR B R 2 F 8 2R

0.218 B 53 B4=12.5%

Total amount of pawn loans granted increased by 8.2% to
HK$56.7 million

Average amount of pawn loans granted increased by 11.4%
to HK$3,900

Total amount of mortgage loans granted increased by
211.0% to HK$119.1 million

Number of new mortgage loans granted increased by
171.0% to 84 cases

Net interest margin for pawn loan increased by 1.4
percentage points to 43.5%

Net interest margin for mortgage loan decreased by 0.2
percentage point to 12.5%
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Four-year Financial Summary
FHHBBE

Profitability data (HK$) BHENEERGET)
Turnover BEE 71,739,895 66,360,621 54,692,308 46,659,418
Operating profit ez T 31,126,603 40,120,485 28,313,517 24,308,648
Profit attributable to equity R R BN R T
shareholders 22,705,941 33,376,055 23,583,874 20,221,472
Earnings per share — basic FkaEHN —EX
(HK cents) () 7.6 111 7.9 6.7
Profitability ratios (%) B EE % (%)
Operating profit margin e Rl 43.4 60.5 51.8 52.1
Net profit margin 4t ) & 31.7 50.3 431 433
Effective tax rate (Note 1) RG] 25.1 16.5 16.6 16.7
Return on total assets (Note 2) EELBODH(ME2) 8.3 17.9 15.4 15.8
Return on shareholders’ equity (Note 3) A% 52 4 % @ 3§ (Fff 5% 3) 1.7 24.7 23.0 25.3
Net interest margin (Note 4) 8= (M ixd) 34.0 37.2 40.5 415
— pawn loans — BEER 43.5 421 429 424
— mortgage loans — BIBEREX 12.5 12.7 9.9 9.0

Operating ratios (as a percentage EELLE(HEEHE

of turnover) (%) B EE) (%)
Staff costs BTKA 21.3 20.4 26.9 29.6
Rental expenses Aem% 10.4 10.9 12.0 12.9
Advertising and promotions EEREE 4.0 3.2 47 1.3

Note 1 Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by the profit before taxation at the respective year

Note 2 Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the total assets as at the respective year

Note 3 Return on Shareholders' equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the total equity as at the respective year

Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less our finance
costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year

B 51 BERMEBEZEN S F 2 B E B IEBR U B AT & 7

B 52 EERERBNERFERNBUASFZEERBENE

M3 BREEEBIRFERMNENE F2RBAEFE

Mt 54 FRANFEERACBEHAEERREBERERZFSBARBERE  RUFRBERERZ ARERERSEHRAETHE

é 0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEEMEEEERARAT]



Four-year Financial Summary MsERF5H#TE

Assets and liabilities data (HK$)
Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Capital and reserves

Assets and Working Capital data

Current ratio (Note 5)

Gearing ratio (%) (Note 6)

Net assets value per share (HK$)
(Note 7)

EEREBREYEGER)
FEREBEE 31,653,425
MEEE 242,459,308
mEaE 80,100,690
ERBEE 188,384
ERKFEE 193,823,659
EEREELS YR
B 2 (P 5E5) 3.0
fE &t & (%) (M 7F6) 35.5
BREEFECETL)

EY) 0.6

8,221,515

9,145,221
42,311,959 43,980,176 40,935,088
134,944,212 102,568,157 79,984,283

2,569,562 2,812,571
178,179,877 150,706,996 125,104,633
6,728,225 6,997,833

19.5 224 17.9
34.0 453 52.2
0.4 0.3 0.3

Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as at the respective year end

Note 6 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation of bank loans, overdrafts, obligations under finance leases and
amounts due to shareholders by total equity as at the respective year end

Note 7 Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by the total number of shares as at the respective year end

B 515 MALEDREFRZRDEERURDEEHE

M 5E6 BELEDREFAZEBERTER B REBEARERENRRERBA L) RUAERAETH

B 527 BRAEFEDNREFAZAEFERURNEEGE

Annual Report 2013 —E—=%F4#§ /



EFRHkE

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the first annual
report of Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited after our
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 12 March 2013.

The successful listing marks an important milestone of the Group.
The overwhelming subscription and market response have been a
great encouragement to us. It proves that our past effort and
performance are recognised, and that investors are confident in
our prospects.

With the looming global economy and stringent regulatory
imposed by local authorities, 2012 is proven to be a challenging
year for financing service providers in Hong Kong. However, as a
provider engaged in pawn loan business and mortgage loan
business, 2012 has brought about both challenges and
opportunities for us.

Pawn loan business has been a cornerstone for the Group and has
continued to provide stable interest income. In FY2012, the pawn
loan business has brought an interest income of HKD56.7 million.

Tight control on Authorised Institutions imposed by the Hong
Kong Government has opened up a tremendous opportunity for
us. With a money lending license, we are able to provide
mortgage financing with flexibility. A rapid growth in the
mortgage loan business has been seen with the total interest
income surging to HKD8.0 million.

Looking forward, our pawn loan business will continue to
experience organic growth and provide steady income. Riding on
this solid foundation, the Group will proactively advance with its
mortgage loan business. The Group will channel even more
resources and effort in building up the “Oi Wah” brand name.
Now that we are listed, doors and opportunities are opened in
front of us on this international platform. We will grasp every
opportunity and expand our reach and market share.
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Chairman Statement £ EiRE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our management team and employees for their
dedication and diligent work. | would also like to thank our
shareholders and investors for their unfailing support. We are
excited to explore and tap into new opportunities, and strive to
bring maximum return to our shareholders.

Chan Kai Ho, Edward
Chairman and Executive Director
16 May 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B EST R &9

Business Review

The Group is a financing service provider in Hong Kong
operating under the brand name of “Oi Wah", principally
engaged in providing short-term secured financing, including
pawn loans and mortgage loans. The Group is the largest pawn
loan service provider in Hong Kong in 2011 in terms of loan
amount granted and number of pawnshops.

During the year ended 28 February 2013, the Group continued to
ride on its foundation in the pawn loan business and further
develop its mortgage loan business.

The pawn loan business maintained a steady growth with
average loan amount of transaction increased to HK$3,900 from
HK$3,500 in the year ended 29 February 2012, and the total loan
amount granted increased to approximately HK$541.6 million
from approximately HK$513.1 million in the year ended 29
February 2012. The pawn loan business is expected to remain the
Group's solid foundation.

The mortgage loan business realised a high speed growth with
total loan amount granted surged 211.0% to HK$119.1 million
from HK$38.3 million in the year ended 29 February 2012.

The Group’s gain on disposal under the reporting period declined
from HK$10.8 million for the year ended 29 February 2012 to
HK$7.0 million, mainly attributable to the leveled international
gold price. During the previous financial year (March 2011-
February 2012), the international gold price picked up a steady
upward trend. The Group thus benefited from the gold
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Management Discussion and Analysis & ¥ /& 51 &% & 9 #7

appreciation while selling the repossessed collaterals after the
pawn loan term of four lunar months. However, the gold price
remained stable during the year under review and the Group did
not gain on gold appreciation as it did in the previous year.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) maintained
the view that the pawn loan industry sustained a steady growth.
There is no significant change in the number of pawnshops and
the loan amount remains a healthy organic growth.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) remain optimistic
about the mortgage loan market. As more stringent policies are
imposed on the authorised institutions by the government. Oi
Wah, as a money lender, can provide more flexibility in granting
loans, and thus is strongly preferred by small-and-medium
enterprises and individuals who have short-term financial needs.
Instead of the mass market, the Group sets sight on high net
worth clients who cannot obtain loans from authorised
institutions, which creates business opportunities for the Group
under the credit tightening environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I /& &1 &% & 9 #7

Our Group’s turnover increased from approximately HK$66.4
million for the year ended 29 February 2012 (“FY 2012") to
approximately HK$71.7 million for the year ended 28 February
2013 (“FY 2013"), representing an increase of approximately
HK$5.3 million or 8.0%. The increase was attributable to the
increase in our interest income earned on our loan receivables by
approximately HK$9.2 million or 16.6% from approximately
HK$55.5 million in FY2012 to approximately HK$64.7 million in
FY2013, offset by a decrease in gain on disposal of repossessed
assets by approximately HK$3.8 million or 35.2% from
approximately HK$10.8 million in FY2012 to approximately
HK$7.0 million in FY2013.

The increase in our interest income earned on our loan
receivables in FY2013 was attributable to the increase in our
interest income earned in both of our pawn loan and mortgage
loan business. Interest income earned on our pawn loan services
increased from approximately HK$52.4 million in FY2012 to
HK$56.7 million in FY2013, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.3 million or 8.2%. The increase was primarily
attributable to our increase in the (i) aggregated amount of pawn
loans granted increased from approximately HK$513.1 million in
FY2012 to approximately HK$541.6 million in FY2013; and (ii)
average amount of pawn loans granted increased from
approximately HK$3,500 per transaction in FY2012 to

approximately HK$3,900 per transaction in FY2013.

Interest income earned on our mortgage loan services increased
significantly from approximately HK$3.2 million in FY2012 to
HK$8.0 million in FY2013, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.8 million or 150.0%. The increase was
mainly due to the continuous expansion of our mortgage loan
portfolio in FY2013. The number of new mortgage loans granted
increased from 31 cases in FY2012 to 84 cases in FY2013 and
the total amount of new mortgage loans granted increased
significantly from approximately HK$38.3 million in FY2012 to
approximately HK$119.1 million in FY2013.

Gain on disposal of repossessed assets represents the gain we
received as we sold the repossessed assets in the event of
default in repayment of our pawn loans. The decrease in our gain
on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2013 was mainly due to

BENEERERERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

the fact that the gold price remained stable at approximately
US$1,600 per ounce in FY2013 while the gold price per ounce
increased from approximately US$1,400 in March 2011 to
US$1,750 in February 2012. Since every pawn loan has a loan
term of four lunar months, the Group gained on the gold
appreciation in FY2012 and thus obtained a better result on gain
on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2012. Since there was no
material appreciation in gold price in FY2013, the Group could
not enjoy the benefit of the appreciation effect as in FY2012 and
thus the drop in gain was noted.

Other revenue and other net income

Other revenue increased from approximately HK$0.8 million in
FY2012 to HK$1.6 million in FY2013 representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.8 million or 100.0%, which was mainly due
to (i) the increase in other income generated from the trading of
luxury goods of approximately HK$0.5 million during FY2013; and
(i) the increase in our credit-related fee income by approximately
HK$0.1 million representing early repayment fees and
administrative fee for loan not drawn within 45 days from our
mortgage loan customers.

Other net income in FY2012 amounted to approximately HK$0.1
million as we recorded approximately HK$0.1 million in our net
gain on disposal of a fixed assets, our motor vehicle, in FY2012
which was one-off in nature. Other net income in FY2013
amounted to approximately HK$200 resulted from the net
realised gain on disposal of trading securities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I /& &1 &% & 9 #7

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK15.1 million or
55.7% from approximately HK$27.1 million in FY2012 to
approximately HK$42.2 million in FY2013.

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$1.8 million or 13.3%
from approximately HK$13.5 million in FY2012 to approximately
HK$15.3 million in FY2013. The increase was mainly attributable
to (i) the increase in salaries and other benefits of approximately
HK$1.0 million mainly due to the increase in staff performance
bonus; (ii) the increase in directors’ remuneration of
approximately HK$0.6 million; and (iii) the increase in our
provision for long service payment of approximately HK$0.2
million in FY2013.

In FY2013, the Group incurred non-recurring listing expenses of
approximately HK$11.2 million, which is related to the initial
public offering (the “IPO”) of the Company’s shares, as
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Since the Company’s successful listing on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 March 2013 (the “Listing Date”),
part of these one-off expenses will be recognised in the next
financial year and we expect the amount will be approximately
HK$4.7 million.

Excluding the listing expenses of approximately HK$11.2 million as
mentioned above, other operating expenses increased by
approximately HK$2.1 million or 15.4% from approximately
HK$13.6 million in FY2012 to approximately HK$15.7 million in
FY2013, which was mainly due to the increase in advertising
expenses, rental expenses and depreciation by approximately
HK$0.7 million, HK$0.2 million and HK$0.1 million respectively.

The finance costs increased significantly by approximately HK$0.7
million or 700.0% from approximately HK$0.1 million in FY2012
to approximately HK$0.8 million in FY2013. The increase was
mostly due to an increase in the amount of bank loans and
overdrafts in FY2013 as we obtained and utilised more bank
loans and overdrafts facilities for funding our expansion of pawn
loan and mortgage loan portfolios.

The impairment losses on loan receivables charged to profit or
loss decreased by approximately HK$26,000 or 34.2% from
approximately HK$76,000 in FY2012 to approximately HK$50,000
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in FY2013. The impairment losses on loan receivables charged to
profit or loss in FY2013 of approximately HK$50,000 was
attributable to the net effect of (i) the subsequent reassessment
on the recoverability of previously impaired loan receivables that
were individually assessed being credited to profit or loss of
approximately HK$79,000; and (i) the impairment losses on loan
receivables that were collectively assessed being charged to profit
or loss of approximately HK$129,000. In FY2012, the impairment
losses on loan receivables charged to profit or loss of
approximately HK$76,000 was attributable to the net effect of (i)
the impairment losses for several loan receivables balances that
were individually assessed which amounted to approximately
HK$139,000 charged to profit or loss; and (ii) the subsequent
reassessment on the recoverability of previously impaired loan
receivables that were collectively assessed being credited to profit
or loss of approximately HK$63,000.

As a result of the foregoings, our profit before taxation excluding
listing expenses increased by approximately HK$1.5 million or
3.7% from approximately HK$40.0 million in FY2012 to
approximately HK$41.5 million in FY2013.

The Group's effective tax rate for FY2013 was 25.1% as
compared to 16.5% for FY2012. The increase in effective tax rate
for FY2013 was mainly due to the listing expenses in relation to
the IPO which were non-deductible for tax purposes. If excluding
the non-recurring listing expenses of approximately HK$11.2
million, the effective tax rate for FY2013 would have been
18.3%.

The increase in effective tax rate for FY2013 after excluding the
non-recurring listing expenses was mainly attributable to an under
provision of profit tax in respect of prior years amounted to
approximately HK$0.5 million. The amount contributed 1.3%
increase to the effective tax rate for FY2013.

The Group’s profit for FY2013 decreased to approximately
HK$22.7 million from approximately HK$33.4 million in FY2012,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$10.7 million or
32.0%. This was mainly attributable to the inclusion of non-
recurring listing expenses of approximately HK$11.2 million as
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for FY2013.
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If excluding the non-recurring listing expenses of approximately
HK$11.2 million, the profit for FY2013 would have increased by
approximately HK$0.5 million or 1.5% as compared to that in
FY2012.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2013, cash and cash equivalent, after netting
off with the bank overdraft, amounted to approximately HK$14.0
million, representing a net increase of approximately HK$4.4
million as compared to the position as at 29 February 2012. The
increase was attributed to the following items:

fif ™ B IEFEACE 1 E TR S 4911,200,0007%
T _EZFPRFEZ RN ER T —
TE BB FEE I HN14)500,00058 T8 1.5% °

RBELERUMBER
R-ZE—=F_A-+/1\BH R %ETE
Y& BHekESEEYWH A14,000,0008
BT ZFZAZtThBEZHRRFE
F#94,400,0008 7T - Be& MRS EEYW A
RAT&E:

For the

year ended 29
February 2012
HE
—E——F
—A=+hH
IEFE

For the

year ended 28
February 2013
B=E
—E—=F

—_A=-+/)\H
IEEE

Net cash (used in)/generated from R () FTEL:
operating activities e FR (51,251,819) 7,969,869
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets BB E T & E 2 A E (685,105) (434,461)
Changes in amounts due to shareholders & < B% 38 2t 18 & ) 3,005,342 (1,742,833)
Proceed from bank loans RITERPIIG IR 60,260,000 2,500,000
Dividend paid 2R & (5,900,000) (1,000,000)
Other net outflow b R (974,845) (86,744)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & K&IR & S EWIE M
ekt 4,453,573 7,205,831

During the year ended 28 February 2013, net cash outflow from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$51.3 million. It was mainly due to the increase in loan
receivables amounted to approximately HK$79.6 million during
the year.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BIEMEEEERAR AT
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIO

Current ratio® MmN RO
Gearing ratio? BEE LR

FERFILE

=

Return on total assets® BELEER
Return on equity® T 75 B ¥R @

Net interest margin® HEEEO

— pawn loan services — HEERRE

— mortgage loan services — RIBERERRE

Notes:

(1) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as (1
at the respective year end.

2) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation of bank 2)
loans, overdrafts, obligations under finance leases and amounts due to
shareholders) by total equity as at the respective year end.

(3) Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the (3)
total assets as at the respective year.

(4) Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the total (4)
equity as at the respective year.

(5) Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in respect (5)

of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less our finance costs, divided by
the average of month-end gross loan receivables balances of the
corresponding loans during the year.

As at As at

28 February 29 February

2013 2012

R-B—=% T——F
—A=+/\H

3x 19x

3% 1915

35.5% 34.0%

For the
year ended 29
February 2012

For the
year ended 28
February 2013

8=
F—=f
—A=+N\H
IEEE
8.28% 17.9%
11.7% 24.7%
34.0% 37.2%
43.5% 42.1%
12.5% 12.7%
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Our Group's current ratio decreased from approximately 19 times
as at 29 February 2012 to approximately 3 times as at 28
February 2013, which was mainly due to the increase in bank
loans and overdrafts from approximately HK$3.4 million as at 29
February 2012 to approximately HK$68.5 million as at 28
February 2013 or approximately 1,914.7%, netting-off the effect
of increase in current loan receivables from approximately
HK$144.4 million as at 29 February 2012 to approximately
HK$200.8 million as at 28 February 2013 or 39.1%.

Our Group's gearing ratio slightly increased from approximately
34.0% as at 29 February 2012 to approximately 35.5% as at 28
February 2013, which was mainly due to the increase in bank
loans and overdrafts from approximately HK$3.4 million as at 29
February 2012 to approximately HK$68.5 million as at 28
February 2013, netting off with the increase in equity by
capitalising the shareholders loan of approximately HK$45.0
million for the year ended 28 February 2013.

Our return on total assets and return on equity decreased from
approximately 17.9% and 24.7% in FY2012 to approximately
8.3% and 11.7% in FY2013 respectively. The reason for the
decrease in return on total assets and return on equity was
mainly due to the one-off listing expenses of approximately
HK$11.2 million incurred during the year ended 28 February 2013
which decreased our net profit recorded in the year.

The net interest margin decreased from approximately 37.2% in
FY2012 to approximately 34.0% in FY2013 since higher
proportion of our interest income was earned from mortgage
loans in FY2013, from which we generally charged comparatively
lower interest rate than that charged on our pawn loans. For
FY2012 and FY2013, interest earned on mortgage loans
contributed approximately 5.8% and 12.3% to our total interest
respectively, resulted from the expansion of our
mortgage loan business during the year.

income,
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 28 February 2013, the Group has a total of 48 employees.
Remuneration for employees is determined in accordance with
performance, professional experiences and the prevailing market
practices. Management reviews the Group’s employee
remuneration policy and arrangement on a regular basis. Apart
from mandatory provident fund scheme, discretionary bonus will
also be granted to certain employees as awards in accordance
with individual performance.

As at 28 February 2013, certain loan receivables with net book
value of HK$67.0 million (2012: Nil) was pledged as security for a
banking facility of the Group.

The aforesaid banking facility was for the expansion of our
mortgage business.

Looking forward, the Group will channel its resources and effort
to business development and risk control. In terms of business
development, the Group will invest capital in promoting the Oi
Wah's brand through various advertising channels, as well as
employing more experienced personnel to further expand the
mortgage loan business.

In terms of risk control, in view of the falling gold price, the
Group will pose a more stringent control when granting loans. A
more careful and conservative loan to value ratio will be applied.
Moreover, the Group will consider cooperating with other
financing service providers to jointly grant loans of large amount.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

The Board has pleasure in submitting this report of the Directors
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 28 February 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing short-term secured financing
business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage
loans.

The listing of and the permission to deal in the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange commenced
on 12 March 2013 (the “Listing”). The prospectus in relation to
the Listing was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company on 27 February 2013.

Financial Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2013
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 53 to 128
of this annual report.

Cash Flow Position

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 28
February 2013 is set out and analysed in the consolidated
statement of cash flows set out on pages 59 to 61 of this
annual report.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 28 February 2013.

Closure of Register of Members

The Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting will be held
at The Executive Centre, Level 3, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, on 12 July 2013. The register of members
of the Company will be closed from 11 July 2013 to 12 July 2013
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. Only shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 12
July 2013 or their proxies or duly authorised corporate
representatives are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the annual general meeting, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’'s branch registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
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Investor Services Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30p.m. on 10 July 2013.

Four-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past four financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of this
annual report.

Transfer to reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$22,705,941 (2012: HK$33,376,055) has been transferred to
reserves.

Distributable Reserves
As at 28 February 2013, the aggregate amount of the
distributable reserves of the Company was HK$45.7 million.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
23 to the financial statements.

Charitable donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year ended 28 February 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1.0
million (2012: Nil).

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements of fixed assets of the Group for the
year ended 28 February 2013 are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the year
ended 28 February 2013 are set out in note 23(a) to the
financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder on 19 February 2013 (the "Adoption Date”).
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
them to promote the success of the business of the Group. The
Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme to any employee (full-time and part-time),
consultant, adviser, Director (including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive Director), Substantial Shareholder (as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)), distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
any member of the Group whom the Board determines have
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No option
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company as
from the Adoption Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares of the
Company issuable upon exercise of options which have been
granted but which have lapsed in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all shares of the
Company in issue upon the Listing Date (i.e. 40,000,000 shares).
The limit of 10% may be refreshed at any time by approval of
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting provided
that the total number of the shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being.
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A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on the exercise of an
option at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall
be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date on which an option is offered to a participant,
which must be a business date (the “Offer Date”); (b) the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the Offer Date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. The
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been

granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme.

The Directors who held office during the year ended 28 February
2013 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 5 June 2012)

Mr. Chan Chart Man (appointed on 5 June 2012)

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (appointed on 19 February 2013)

Ms. Chan Ying Yu (appointed on 19 February 2013)
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Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (appointed on 19 February 2013)

Mr. Chan Wing Lee (appointed on 19 February 2013)
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (appointed on 19 February 2013)

Dr. Yip Ngai (appointed on 19 February 2013)

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, one-third of
the Directors will retire by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company and will be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan Chart
Man and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting are set out in the circular
sent to the shareholders of the Company together with this
annual report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 28 February 2013, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company had an
interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO"):

Name of Shareholder

BRER&E

Capacity
5 6

Kwan Lik Holding Limited Beneficial interest
BEaEn

Ms. Chan Nga Yu Interest in a controlled corporation

PR T 3 2+ NN X

Ms. Chan Kit Yu Interest in a controlled corporation
BROR B 2 £+ MEELEE 2R

Ms. Mui Hang Sin Interest in a controlled corporation
A2+ MREELEE 2 R

Note 1:

Kwan Lik Holding Limited is owned as to 40%, 20%, 20%, 5%, 5%, 5% and 5%
by Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan
Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Mui Hang Sin,
respectively. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Chart Man and his family members, namely Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Chan Kit Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin are deemed to be interested in the
300,000,000 shares of the Company owned by Kwan Lik Holding Limited by virtue
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 28 February 2013, there was no
other person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as having an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.
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NAIEBEITHABBRIN RARE R G & AE
RO PEERER IR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Note Ordinary Shares shareholding
Bt & LTERYE HBOBRESIL
1 300,000,000 75%
1 300,000,000 75%
1 300,000,000 75%
1 300,000,000 75%
B 51
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 28 February 2013, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, are set out below:

Interest in the shares of the Company

Nature of interest

EnE

Name of Director

ESns

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward Interest in a controlled corporation

BR R = 5 & MR AR 2w
Mr. Chan Chart Man Interest in a controlled corporation
PRE X & MNEEEE 2 Ea
Ms. Chan Mei Fong Interest in a controlled corporation
PREF X+ MNEZELEE 2w
Ms. Chan Ying Yu Interest in a controlled corporation
PR 25 B 22 + REEEE 2 #am
Note 2:

Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Ms. Chan
Mei Fong owns 40%, 20%, 20% and 5%, respectively, of the issued shares of
Kwan Lik Holding Limited which is in turn interested in 75% of the Company’s
issued share capital. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Ms. Chan Mei Fong are deemed to be interested in the
300,000,000 shares owned by Kwan Lik Holding Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited REMREEEERARAR
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ROIEISHEH A ZIEFTIEE R MAZ#E S
MAR KBRELEMAREZETESRR
SZEEFAMG AR RIS R
KEHINAT

REAT KRG ZER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Ordinary Shares shareholding
LTERBEE #MOFRKRESLHE
300,000,000 75%
300,000,000 75%
300,000,000 75%
300,000,000 75%

B 2
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Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or

Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 28
February 2013 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the
Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or associates was a party and in which any director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any
business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 19 February 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, and such service agreements
may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
agreements.
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Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors was appointed to the Board pursuant to their
respective letters of appointment dated 19 February 2013, for an
initial term of three year commencing from the Listing Date, and
such appointment may be terminated in accordance with the
terms of the service agreements.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director of the Company proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company has a service contract with members of the Group that
is not determinable by the Group within one vyear without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
the Listing Date. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 28 February 2013.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman lIslands
which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Major Customers
During the year under review, the Group's five largest customers
together accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s sales.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 16
May 2013, the Company maintains the prescribed percentage of
public float under the Listing Rules.
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The Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, namely, Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan
Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu and Ms. Mui
Hang Sin entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 21 February
2013 pursuant to which the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its
subsidiaries) that it or he or she would not, and would procure
that its or his or her associates (other than any member of our
Group) would not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or
be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director,
employee or otherwise) any business which is or may be in
competition with the current businesses of the Group during the
restricted period.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
Controlling Shareholders on compliance with each of their
respective undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is
fully complied with and duly enforced since the Listing Date.

The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing
connected transactions (the ”“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Group for the year ended 28 February
2013:

(i) On 24 October 2012, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an
executive Director executed a guarantee to provide a
personal guarantee to a relevant landlord to secure
the due performance of Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit
Limited ("Oi Wah HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, under a tenancy
agreement in respect of renting a premises to operate
one of our pawnshops for a term of three years from
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016. No consideration has
been paid by the Group to Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
for his provision of the personal guarantee to the said
landlord for the benefits of our Group.
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(iii)

On 23 September 2011, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an
executive Director executed a guarantee to provide a
personal guarantee to a relevant landlord to secure
the due performance of Oi Wah HK under a tenancy
agreement in respect of renting a premises to operate
one of our pawnshops for a term of two years from
15 December 2011 to 14 December 2013. No
consideration has been paid by the Group to Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward for his provision of the personal
guarantee to the said landlord for the benefits of our
Group.

On 8 April 2008, Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive
Director executed a guarantee to provide a personal
guarantee to a relevant landlord to secure the due
performance of Oi Wah HK under a tenancy
agreement in respect of renting a premises to operate
one of our pawnshops for a term of five years from
1 February 2009 to 31 January 2014. No
consideration has been paid by the Group to Mr.
Chan Chart Man for his provision of the personal
guarantee to the said landlord for the benefits of our
Group.

The above three personal guarantees provided by Mr. Chan
Kai Ho Edward and Mr. Chan Chart Man, both of whom

being connected persons of the Company,

constitute

continuing connected transactions for the Company which

are exempt from the

reporting, announcement and

independent shareholders” approval requirements under Rule
14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

On 8 June 2012, for the purpose of operating one of
our pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited
("Hing Wah HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Hing Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with
Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited (“Kwan
Chart Holding”), which is owned as to 90% and
10% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive Director
and by his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, respectively. Pursuant to
the Hing Wah Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart
Holding shall lease a premises to Hing Wah HK for a
term of two years from 8 June 2012 to 7 June 2014
at a monthly rent of HK$40,000.
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(i) On 8 June 2012, for the purpose of operating one of
our pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited
("Wai Wah HK”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with
Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive Director. Pursuant
to the Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement, Mr. Chan Chart
Man shall lease a premises to Wai Wah HK for a term
of two years from 8 June 2012 to 7 June 2014 at a
monthly rent of HK$40,000.

(i) On 31 May 2012, for the purpose of operating our
head office, Oi Wah HK entered into a tenancy
agreement ("Oi Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with
Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited (“Kwan Chart
Estate”), which is owned as to 95% and 5% by Mr.
Chan Chart Man, an executive Director and by his
spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, respectively. Pursuant to the Oi Wah
Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Estate shall lease a
premises to Oi Wah HK for a term of two years from
31 May 2012 to 30 May 2014 at a monthly rent of
HK$39,000.

It has been expected that the aggregate annual rental for each of
the three years ending 28 February 2015 payable by our Group in
respect of the Hing Wah Tenancy Agreement, Wai Wah Tenancy
Agreement and Oi Wah Tenancy Agreement (the “Tenancy
Agreements”) will not exceed the maximum annual cap of
HK$1,431,000, HK$1,428,000 and HK$476,000 which represents
twelve months’, twelve months’ and four months’ of aggregate
rental, respectively. For the year ended 28th February 2013, the
aggregate amount of rental paid by our Group in respect of the
Tenancy Agreements was HK$1,431,000.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions have been
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to (or from)
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the
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relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain review
procedures in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have provided a letter to the Board confirming that
for the year ended 28 February 2013 the Continuing Connected
Transactions (i) have received approval of the Board; (ii) are in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable; (iii) have been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have
not exceeded the respective cap amounts for the year ended 28
February 2013 as set out above in respect of the Continuing
Connected Transactions.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions
that did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules made during the year were disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by
KPMG, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
16 May 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

TEEBRSE

Corporate Governance Practices

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock
Exchange with effect from the Listing Date in March 2013 after
the end of the year ended 28 February 2013. The Company is
committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its business and the Shareholders. The Company
has adopted the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with the Code Provisions, except
Code Provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an
executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the Group, who
has been primarily involved in formulation of business strategies
and determination of the overall direction of the Group. He has
also been chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations as he
directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of the Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of the Group’s business plans, the
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for
both positions and the present arrangements are beneficial and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to
time.
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Directors

The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management of the Company
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approving and monitoring all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to
the senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operation and production plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems.
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For the year ended 28 February 2013, the Board held one formal
meeting. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 28 February 2013 is as follows:

REBEE-_T—=F"A-+N\BHILFEE =&
EEERT—AERGRHZ  -HEZZT—=
ZAZt+N\BLEEFE ERESEHFEEST
GHZBROT:

Attendance/

Number of Board

Name of Director Meeting held

HE B81TZ

ESHE ESHEERRH
Executive Directors: HiTESE:
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward BREN & %& &

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFETBAEZE) 1/1
Mr. Chan Chart Man PR 58 3%k A& 1”1
Ms. Chan Ying Yu PR 55 H 22 £ 1”1
Ms. Chan Mei Fong BREZ =+ 1”1
Non-executive Director: FEHITESE -

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion PR RUBR S £ 11
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHTESE

Mr. Chan Wing Lee Bk ok Il 55 A 11
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert RIHEBL 11
Dr. Yip Ngai EHEL 1/

For the year ended 28 February 2013, apart from the meeting of
the Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been
obtained by written resolutions on a number of matters.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 June
2012. For the year ended 28 February 2013, no general meeting
of the Company was held.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director, currently holds
both the positions of chairman and chief executive office. Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the
Group, who has been primarily involved in formulation of
business strategies and determination of the overall direction of
the Group. He has also been chiefly responsible for the Group’s
operations as he directly supervises other executive Directors and
senior management of the Group. Taking into account the
continuation of the implementation of the Group’s business
plans, the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best
candidate for both positions and the present arrangements are
beneficial and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Board Composition EEGZAMR

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four ZZ€HBHN\ZEEAK  BEONLHTT
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three EFE W —ZENTEER="LBIIERTE
independent non-executive Directors. The current composition of % c BEEGIREF ZAHAMK W T

the Board is as follows:

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZSERE

Executive Directors:

#HITEE:
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) Member of Remuneration Committee
BRERZ S i (F /B HF T AR Z) FMEEGKE
Member of Nomination Committee
REEZEGKE
Mr. Chan Chart Man
PRE X &
Ms. Chan Ying Yu
PR 5 3 & +
Ms. Chan Mei Fong
PREF XL
Non-executive Director:
FHITESE:
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BRBUR £ &
Independent Non-executive Directors:
HIHBITEE:
Mr. Chan Wing Lee Chairman of Remuneration Committee
BR Ak I 5 & FHMEERER
Member of Audit Committee
ERZEEGKE
Member of Nomination Committee
REZEGKE
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert Chairman of Nomination Committee
RIKHEE L RELZEEEF
Member of Audit Committee
EREEGKE
Member of Remuneration Committee
FEEEKE
Dr. Yip Nagai Chairman of Audit Committee
ERiEL ERLZEGERE
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to
Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is
required to have such number of independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board, and at least
one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Dr.
Leung Shiu Ki Albert was admitted as an associate of The
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants (currently known
as Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in February
1987 and became an associate of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors and considered that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 47 to 49
of this annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 47 to 48 of
this annual report, the Board members do not have any family,
financial or business relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is
disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, and each of the non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company. Such term is for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date and
is subject to the re-appointment of each of the Directors by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any
Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B EERAR AT

EWREIEIIOMMGERE BELETRARZ
EESVERREEL=EBIUFNTES -
AN - FTRBIE310AR3I0Q)IERTE - &
REMABIZBIFERNITEETNERESS
REABZL=92—  UREDHRI—F
BYNTESVEEERESE CHEEER
S EBEE g IHE M BERER o
RREE IR —NMNECF_REZNAITT
AREFHMAEEE YR —NANNFNA

RRBEEGTMAEEE -

ARREEBERBIFATEERELTR
AIFE3BRBELEZFEBLINERE - &
EeCHEMABYENTES BT
VYRBAABLIFATESTHRBLAL -

EEREEFRHEARAEREREFITEF49
B RAFRFEATZABEFAREEIN EF
EXBECRAMEFEEMNRE  BHHEHR
BA% °

HEEREOTIBAEADE KB
b RERADTRERE EARTIEY
FADRRAREE -

EE EBRREREEF
ERTEFCEARANLRBEAH  ME
FHUTESERBUFRPTESCHARAER
BEZAEE -V FHALTRRREF A=
FOMBEFARNERERERRBFAG L
HARBEHMEZME -

ARPABERAURE TNHESFEZ
TN EHEFTERBER2ESEHES
ARBTMEARRAE WERZAEGLER
BEERNERMERENMAETSZES
EHEARR TREERBERGEER - &

HiRaEREXER -



Corporate Governance Report £ ¥ &i& iR &

In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not greater than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation according to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association
of the Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operation of the
Group and full awareness of director's responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Directors will also be updated from time to
time on the business development and operation plans of the
Company.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Company will
arrange for, and provide fund for, all the Directors to participate
in continuous professional development organised in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep
them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge
on the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes,
the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The
Company will also update the Directors of any material changes
in the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time
to time.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Each
of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix 10
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers) (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to
the dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out in
the Model Code since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report.
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Board Committees

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to Afill
vacancies on the Board and senior management. The existing
members of the Nomination Committee include Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Chan Wing Lee, both are independent non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive
Director. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

For the year ended 28 February 2013,
Nomination Committee was held.

no meeting of the

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

Details of the work of the Nomination Committee from the
Listing Date to 28 February 2014 will be disclosed in the
corporate governance report in the next annual report of the
Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and determine on behalf of the
Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for the Directors and senior management. The
existing members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr.
Chan Wing Lee and Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert, both are
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, an executive Director. Mr. Chan Wing Lee is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

For the year ended 28 February 2013,
Remuneration Committee was held.

no meeting of the
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

Details of the work of the Remuneration Committee from the
Listing Date to 28 February 2014 will be disclosed in the
corporate governance report in the next annual report of the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and the internal control systems of the Group. The existing
members of the Audit Committee comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr.
Leung Shiu Ki Albert and Mr. Chan Wing Lee, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Dr. Yip Ngai is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 28 February 2013, no meeting of the Audit
Committee was held.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

Details of the work of the Audit Committee from the Listing Date
to 28 February 2014 will be disclosed in the corporate
governance report in the next annual report of the Company.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing the
corporate governance compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board
in discharge of its corporate governance function.

& B g 2 B HE 0 B A AN ) AR %
RFrA8uL L& -

FRyHEZEga tmHRE T -HF—
AZFTNBZIEHE  BSRARE T—06H
FEBEZLEXERABREARE -

EZEEE
ARFIZEZZEER T ="_Ath
BRI - BARA EMEER  WRE LT
RAGIFIFEEMBESRE  BELEE8eL
TERAERS(HEPERRILEELAEEZ
MHEBEREFRARBEZRR - EREES
BEXEBEEREL - RIHE L RERK
MEE(REHRBIFERNTESR) - ERE
ITREREZESER -

AEERECHEXZESEH -

HE-_ZT—=F-_A=-+N\BHLEE &
ZESWERITEE -

BZEL B 2 B E R AR B A8 uh K
RFrAgvE &R -

EHERZEGa LHARE-_T—NF—
AZTNBZIHEHE  BRARET—0
FEREZLEEAREARE -

ERELHAE

EFeAR(APER i kR AsE
CEEABREEER URERETERR
EEREZER BRIAREREERSMRE
BEZIBIRSESEER  URieThE
BARBNATAEX RN FRIEHIE

ARREARECAEFREN  LETH
DEERBAE -

Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=%F4#§

4]



42

Corporate Governance Report &£ ¥ &8 &

Details of the work of the Board in discharging its corporate
governance function from the Listing Date to 28 February 2014
will be disclosed in the corporate governance report in the next
annual report of the Company.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner
in accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 28
February 2013. Currently, the Company’s external auditors are
KPMG (the “Auditors”).

For the year ended 28 February 2013, the audit and non-audit
service fees paid or payable by the Company amounted to
approximately HK$0.3 million and approximately HK$5.0 million,
respectively. The non-audit services mainly included services
performed in relation to initial public offering of the Company.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 51 to 52 of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

A sound and effective internal control system is important to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
During the year ended 28 February 2013, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. External consultants were hired to assist the Board to
perform high-level review of internal control systems for selected
business operations and processes. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group.

Delegation by the Board

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance and sets appropriate policies
for risk management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic
objectives. The Board delegates the implementation of strategies
and day-to-day operation of the Group to the management.

0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B EERAR AT

EMESRE LTAME-S-—ME-A=
+NRBTECEE AWMLY T - 15
RAQR T—REEREZ CEERRER
W -

GCii=P 4 kA

MR &
REBZUBEEDRIBEMEEERT L
B2 TR AI513.4901) % (6) 1§ 15 F 2 B
KRB QM -

PREEHR REFFEEREAEEHAE
“E-=F A+ N\BUEFEZHBE®RE -
ARRBEKZIIBZEMAE TR SRS
B ([ B -

BE-_E—="F#-_A=-+N\BLEE £AA
BB IZ BOR TS R IE X BUR TS A S 2 BR
7% 8 5 Bl A #7300,0007 7T & #95,000,0007%
T ERBRBEEERERAQARNERAHM
BERB RS -

G REHARBMBERRE] ZHR
BEMEFLZBRAFRAFE R EFES1ES2
BZBIZEBMBmE -

Py &R Bx i

BEMARZAMEZE RGN RERR
BRERARRIZEEFREE - BE-T—
=“F-AZHN\BLEFE EFgCRAAL
SEAMEERR 2R - REBIEFING
BEROOEFTSHRET XK LERE
FZRMERRGETSERNEN - FE
MEMABTITrEZEER&®E BREAEEZY
B2 ERGREEARRREERAE -

EREERENIZCER

—RME EFCEEFATAZABERR
EEAREZER  KBREE - EFEL
ERREHEERMERR  WHEEE
RIBEREE  URERAEE 2 KA
2 EFRRTERENTAEEEBRA
EARLBEH IS -



Corporate Governance Report £ ¥ &i& iR &

Company Secretary

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the
Board and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the
Board, possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and
is capable of performance of the functions of the company
secretary. The Company will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take
not less than 15 hours of appropriate professional training in
each financial year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Communication with Shareholders

Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the Shareholders and
investors of the Company. The Board also recognises that
effective communication with the Company’s investors is critical
in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency to ensure the Shareholders and the investors of
the Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate communications on the
website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by
the Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
questions of Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Shareholders’ Rights

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

2. Procedures for Raising Enquiries
Shareholders may direct their queries about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited:
Address: 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
Fax: (852) 2810 8185
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Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence
address, email address and enquiry hotlines of the

Company:
Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)
Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk
Tel: (852) 28332002
Fax: (852) 28919831
3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ 3.
Meetings

(i) Proposal for election of a person other than a Director
as a Director:
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association,
a Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting should lodge (i)
notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director; and (ii) notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected, at either (a) the head office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart
Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
or (b) the registration office of the Company in Hong
Kong at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment
of the notices mentioned above will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least seven days.

(i) Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may
lodge a written request, duly signed, at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong marked for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made
by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion
decide whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the
notice of meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting of the Company.

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company.

(3)  Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of an
ordinary resolution in an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company.

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on 19
February 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company were adopted with effect
from the Listing Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year
ended 28 February 2013, there was no significant change in the
Memorandum and Articles of association of the Company.

The Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of

Association of the Company are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREHEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREI3%), aged 41, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of each of Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah HK, Wai Wah HK and Hing
Wah HK and the authorised representative of the Company. Mr.
Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for our Group's
overall management, strategic planning and business development.
He has over 12 years of experience in business management and
pawn loan business. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman of the
Hong Kong and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association Limited (i JL
#2574 €) and honorary chairman of Macau General Chamber of
Pawnbrokers ("] 1 3 4475 €). Mr. Chan obtained a Degree of
Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City
University, London, United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the
son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of Ms. Chan Mei
Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, both of
whom are our Directors.

Mr. Chan Chart Man (PR3 3C), aged 81, is our founder and
executive Director. He is also a director of each of Oi Wah
Holding, Oi Wah HK, Wai Wah HK and Hing Wah HK. Mr. Chan
is responsible for advising on overall strategic planning and
business development of our Group. Mr. Chan established the
business of our Group in 1975 and has played a significant role
in the growth of our business. He has over 37 years of
experience in finance and pawn loan business. Mr. Chan is the
father of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms Chan
Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, both of whom are our
Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (BR2E35), aged 42, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2007
and is responsible for the overall operations of our Group's
business. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Town
and Country Planning from the University of the West of
England, Bristol, United Kingdom in September 1996. Ms. Chan
also obtained a diploma in Gemmology and Gem Diamond
diploma from the Gemmological Association And Gem Testing
Laboratory Of Great Britain in January 2006 and January 2007,
respectively. Ms. Chan is a fellow of The Gemmological
Association of Great Britain. Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr.
Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, both of whom
are our Directors.
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Ms. Chan Ying Yu (BR3EH}), aged 47, is our executive Director.
She is also a director of Oi Wah HK and the authorised
representative of the Company. Ms. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for overseeing our administration and
human resources matters. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Management from the
Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July 1995 and was
elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering International
Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan is the
daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr. Chan Kai
Macksion, both of whom are our Directors.

Kow

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (PX B 3k), aged 57, was
appointed as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013.
Mr. Chan is a lawyer with 28 years of experience in general
practice. He has passed solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong
Kong and was admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in March 1984 and has been a partner in Chow C.L. &
Macksion Chan since 2001. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts
in Pure Mathematics degree from The University of Calgary,
Canada in June 1978. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Chart
Man and the brother of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei
Fong and Ms. Chan Ying Yu, both of whom are our Directors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Lee (B 7k #l), aged 75, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr.
Chan has over 36 years of commercial banking experience. Mr.
Chan was an independent non-executive director in Gemini
Investments (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from August 2004 to November
2010.

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (3Jk#), aged 63, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr.
Leung currently also serves as an independent non-executive
director in Tack Fiori International Group Limited and Universe
International Holdings Limited, both of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is currently
the Financial and Business Consultant of Beauchamp International
Development Limited and is responsible for providing financial
and business development service. Dr. Leung was also an
assistant vice president in Citicorp International Limited from
1987 to 1992. Dr. Leung was admitted as an associate of The
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Chartered Association of Certified Accountants (now known as
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987
and became an associate of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr.
Leung obtained a Doctorate degree of Philosophy in Economics
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in September
2007, a Master degree of Business Administration from Brunel
University, United Kingdom in December 1985 and a Diploma in
Management Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London,
United Kingdom in October 1983.

Dr. Yip Ngai (¥%%), aged 38, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a jewellery
appraiser and valuation expert and has over 20 years of experience
in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow of the
HKICPA in May 2012. He has also been appointed as a specialist by
the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational
Qualifications and as a Visiting Associate Professor by the Shanghai
Tongji University since July 2011. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate
degree in business administration from the European University in
May 2011 and a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) degree from the
Monash University, Australia in November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a
diploma in gemmology from the Gemmological Association and
Gem Testing Laboratory of Great Britain in October 1994. He is
also a qualified jewellery appraiser and became a member of the
National Association of Jewelry Appraisers in January 1995. Dr. Yip
received the Preliminary Trade Prize from the Gemmological
Association and Gem Testing Laboratory of Great Britain in 1993.

Senior Management

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (#B#E#j), aged 30, is our financial
controller and company secretary. He joined our Group in June
2012 and is responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting
and secretarial affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Cheng worked at KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last
position was assistant manager. Mr. Cheng was registered as a
certified public accountant and a certified public accountant
(practising) of the HKICPA in January 2010 and September 2012,
respectively. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accountancy from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2006.
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Mr. Ng Kai Man ({ER¥3Z), aged 52, is our senior manager and
is responsible for managing and operating our property mortgage
department. Mr. Ng joined our Group in 2013. His main duties
are strengthening customer relationships by scheduling regular
personal and company visits in Hong Kong in order to explore
new business opportunities with potential customers. Prior to
joining our Group, he had been working in Wing Lung Bank
since 1988 and was promoted to senior financial manager in
2010. Mr. Ng obtained a Diploma in marketing from Hong Kong
Productivity Council and Hong Kong Institute of Marketing in
1999 and a professional Diploma in marketing management from
Hong Kong Management Association in 1996 respectively. In
1999 he was elected full member of Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing and awarded as Professional Marketer (ProM) in 2001.
He also obtained an advanced professional Diploma in financial
planning from The University of Hong Kong, School of
professional and continuing education in 2006. In 2005, he has
been admitted as a Certified Professional Marketer (Asia) by Asia
Marketing Federation, which is a member of World Marketing
Federation. He is currently studying a Master of Financial Services
degree in The Open University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo Kwok Keung Garlick (EB54), aged 50, is our manager
and is responsible for the operation and management of our
property mortgage department. Mr. Lo joined our Group in
February 2011. Mr. Lo has been working in insurance industry
since 2001. Prior to this, Mr. Lo worked as an accounts manager
at a manufacturing company from 1993 to 1997. Mr. Lo became
a member of Registered Financial Planners Institute in October
2008 and an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in November 1999. He has obtained a professional
diploma in information technology from the Hong Kong
Management Association in November 2000.

Ms. Chan Mei Yi Jacqueline (BR3E{%), aged 42, is our manager
of our property mortgage department. Ms. Chan joined our
Group in May 2013. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Chan worked
at Wing Lung Bank Ltd from 1997 to 2013 and her last position
was financial services manager. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of
Business Administration from University of Management and
Technology of United States in December 2009.

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (EB#E#) is our company secretary.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the
paragraph headed “Senior management” in this section.
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BIZMENRE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Oi
Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 128,
which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 28 February 2013, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BEEREEEERARATRRZEIL
2B BN R &
(RESHEZMA L ZFHRL A

RZHEATEREEMDEEZINENE
S3ZEIBEREREEEEREBRARIE
RENDEREWNBRAR(GRBIEEE D2 HE
HBHRER UWEAWERREBER=Z—=
FZAZHN\BZHEEHBERRARRAG N
FEMRRE  EHEEZALFEZHEEAEE
Wak HERSEPREEAEESRE
R URFTZESHBRERE R LMK T HEE
B e

BERAEFRARARBRESHASEM
LEENBREENREFB ARG 2 B E
RERBEEMBHRE  USKEEMBRE
FHEEMAFZRREZEERBRELR
SRRV EZ ARBIES - LEFS Y
BREANFEHRRFXAERMER 2 E
REERRAL -

BRZEERRERMZECHZTGRAY
BRERELER - AREER B BBRRIF
oo BRitb 2 9h - BRI E T A B EE A A
& R AR AN RENAT - HHEAHEM
ATBESFEEEFEL -

BPEREFESHMASRM 2T B ERT
HAPETTERZ - R FEAZREFBTER
RE - YREIRWTER  NEEBEEERS
BBBREE N FEERNERERRAL -

—TCFFR

S



Independent Auditor’s Report 5 3 #% S ifi iR &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 28 February 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

16 May 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GEEZERRER

For the year ended 28 February 2013 #HE-T—=F-_A=-1+/\BIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February

29 February
2012
—E——F

—_AZ=-+thH

Turnover EEE 3 71,739,895 66,360,621
Other revenue H b Ui 2= 1,610,203 840,316
Other net income H b g A\ F 5 234 123,012
Operating income BEWRA 73,350,332 67,323,949
Operating expenses KX 6 (42,173,951) (27,127,035)
Charge for impairment losses on HMRERERZ

loan receivables BEEE 7 (49,778) (76,429)
Profit from operations BEHRN 31,126,603 40,120,485
Finance costs B & K AR 6(a) (821,659) (141,874)
Profit before taxation B %t i g 6 30,304,944 39,978,611
Income tax gt 8 (7,599,003) (6,602,556)
Profit and total comprehensive EE IR

income for the year 2EEANERS 22,705,941 33,376,055
Profit and total comprehensive  }% 5 FE {5 £ &£ its F

income for the year RzEl @8

attributable to shareholders 22,705,941 33,376,055
Earnings per share (in HK cents) & 8% Z # (G&1l) 11 7.6 11.1

The notes on pages 62 to 128 form part of these financial 62E1288 2 Wt 5B AN 15 &K 2 — &P
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GeMBIRRNFE

As at 28 February 2013 R-T—=F_A=1+N\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February

29 February

54

2013
—F-=F

—B=+/)\H

2012
—E——F
—_AZ=-+thH

Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EEE 12 1,657,829 1,395,973
Loan receivables JFE W B 3 13 29,799,413 6,602,930
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEE 21(b) 196,183 222,612
31,653,425 8,221,515

Current assets REEE
Repossessed assets U B & E 5,215,024 6,869,020
Loan receivables FE W B 3 13 200,752,663 144,350,102
Trade and other receivables E 5 & H e Uk IR 15 16,713,242 16,533,870
Trading securities BB &5 14 — 3,789
Cash and cash equivalents REEREFEDY 16 19,778,379 10,423,096
242,459,308 178,179,877
Current liabilities RBEE

Accruals and other payables EsrEBAR
H b JE I 518 18 5,559,385 2,427,606
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEY 17 68,513,447 3,351,737
Obligations under finance leases b & RiE 19 165,511 157,845
Current taxation BV EA 74 18 21(a) 5,862,347 3,208,033
80,100,690 9,145,221
Net current assets REBEETFHE 162,358,618 169,034,656
Total assets less current liabilities & 2 48 3 & % 5 & f& 194,012,043 177,256,171

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &M Bk R T

As at 28 February 2013 R=T—=F—A=1+N\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February 29 February
2012

—E——F

—_AZ=-+thH

Non-current liabilities ERSER

Obligations under finance leases B AT &R E 19 188,384 353,895

Amounts due to shareholders FEAS IR B ZR 18 22 — 41,958,064
188,384 42,311,959

NET ASSETS BEFH 193,823,659 134,944,212

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEREE 23

Capital N 100,000 12,100,000

Reserves ik 1 56,963,506 —

Retained profits R B & A 136,760,153 122,844,212

TOTAL EQUITY W 193,823,659 134,944,212

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEZEWR_ZT—=FF A+ NAHERRK
16 May 2013 E H) %

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (B# Bl 5 %5 4 ) Ms. Chan Ying Yu (B 2 %) % +)
Director & % Director & %

The notes on pages 62 to 128 form part of these financial %$62Z%1288 ~ WX 9B A& @R % 2 — 2B
statements. A

o
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Statement of Financial Position
Bf Bk M |

As at 28 February 2013 R-T—=F_A=1+N\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February
2013

—¥—-=F

—B=+/)\H

Non-current assets ERBHEE

Investment in subsidiaries RBAR 21 E 27 57,063,506

Current assets HEEE

Prepaid expenses BRAXZ 15 3,570,490

Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREFEY 16 20,132
3,590,622 |

Current liabilities REBBEE

Accruals and other payables FE 5T & A & H M FE < 5k 1B 18 2,575,000

Amount due to a subsidiary FET— BT B A A 2 5k IB 27 12,361,391
14,936,391 |

Net current liabilities RBBEEHE (11,345,769)

Total assets less current liabilities EERBERRBHAER 45,717,737

NET ASSETS BEEFH 45,717,737

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Statement of Financial Position Bf & ik R &

As at 28 February 2013 R=T—=F—A=1+N\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February
2013

—E—-=F

—BA=+/)\H

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGEE 23

Capital & 7% 100,000
Reserves i 1 56,963,506
Accumulated losses RETEE (11,345,769)
TOTAL EQUITY s 45,717,737

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
16 May 2013

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (5% Bf 5% 55 4 )

KEEEeR _T—=FR A+ B ERRK

1T 2%

Ms. Chan Ying Yu (B¥ % 35 2 +)

Director & %

The notes on pages 62 to 128 form part of these financial
statements.

farad
ES
vol

Director & %

62E128H <M IBAME K 2 — &
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEDEZIDR

For the year ended 28 February 2013 #HE-T—=F_A-+/\BIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

Paid-in

capital/share Capital Other Retained

58

capital
BHHEF
& &

reserve

e L]

reserve

Hib %%

profits

R 2 it

At 1 March 2011 R-F——%
=H—H 12,100,000 = — 90,468,157 102,568,157
Profit and total comprehensive FEw AR 2 EK
income for the year A 4858 = = — 33,376,055 33,376,055
Profit distribution prior to the AR A 2R
listing 23(b)(ii) — — — (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
At 29 February 2012 R-®—-%f
and 1 March 2012 —A=+hnH
R-FT—Z_%§
=RA—H 12,100,000 — — 122,844,212 134,944,212
Profit and total comprehensive FEmAMR2HEK
income for the year Nk = = — 22,705,941 22,705,941
Profit distribution prior to the T AR R 5 R
listing 23(b)(ii) — — — (8,790,000) (8,790,000)
Capital injection of a subsidiary ~ —FEH{ B2 7
ZEE 100 = — — 100
Capital injection of the KRB ZEE
Company 23(a) — — — — —
Acquisition of shareholder loan —HE QR M E
by a subsidiary % R E &R 23(d)(ii) 1,000 44,962,406 = — 44,963,406
Capitalisation arising on the BHEEZERE
Reorganisation 23(c)(ii) (12,001,100) — 12,001,100 = =
At 28 February 2013 R-B—=%
—A=+N\H 100,000 44,962,406 12,001,100 136,760,153 193,823,659

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited

BENXERERERAR

The notes on pages 62 to 128 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GERERER

For the year ended 28 February 2013 #HE-T—=F_"A—-1+/\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February

29 February

2012
—E——F

—_AZ=-+thH

Operating activities HEER
Profit before taxation B 754 A1 4 A 30,304,944 39,978,611
Adjustments for: M S EMELAE:
Depreciation e 426,764 324,723
Dividend income from trading BEEBFMEE
securities Z B A (133) (160)
Bank interest income R 17 F B A (403) (380)
Net realised and unrealised EERHFZBEER
(gain)/loss on trading MAREIE W),/
securities &5 18 F 5 (234) 898
Finance costs B & KA 821,659 141,874
Impairment loss on loan EREFREERE
receivables 49,778 76,429
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEE 2K — (123,910)
Operating profit before changes ZEE &2
in working capital ZEBE T 31,602,375 40,398,085
Decrease/(increase) in repossessed  #% U [8] & 72 &l
assets (3% h0) 1,653,996 (56,361)
Increase in loan receivables JE UL B FR A% N (79,648,822) (25,560,270)
Increase in trade and other B 5 & E M EWFKIE
receivables % hn (3,069,372) (1,614,900)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and  FEEHE A K& H b fE
other payables B, R ) 3,128,264 (778,946)
Cash (used in)/generated from E£BFRA)
operations FRELRZ (46,333,559) 12,387,608
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFEHR (4,918,260) (4,417,739)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEXB R
from operating activities FELHREFHE (51,251,819) 7,969,869

Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=4F4#§ SQ



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z&IRERER

For the year ended 28 February 2013 #HE-T—=F_A-+/\BIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February

29 February

60

2013
—F-=F

—B=+/)\H

2012
—E——F

—_AZ=-+thH

Investing activities BEETR
Dividends received from trading BEERFARIZKE

securities 133 160
Bank interest received 2 YCEER 1T ) & 403 380
Proceeds from disposal of fixed HEBREEE

assets Z SRR — 192,850
Proceeds from disposal of trading  HEE & & %

securities Z FriS 318 4,023 —
Payment for the purchase of fixed EEEETEE

assets Z R (685,105) (434,461)
Net cash used in investing BEEXBFARSFHA

activities (680,546) (241,071) )
Financing activities RIE T
Proceeds from capital injection EE 21 RIE 100 —
Changes in amounts due to JE 1 % 3R 3R I8 & &)

shareholders 3,005,342 (1,742,833)
Finance costs paid EATRE KA (800,752) (110,495)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZ FERIA 60,260,000 2,500,000
Dividends paid B’ E (5,900,000) (1,000,000)
Capital element of finance lease EN@MERNES

rentals paid ZEREBH (157,845) (138,260)
Interest element of finance lease EN@MERNES

rentals paid ZF B EB S (20,907) (31,379)
Net cash generated from/(used RUIZBEERESE A

in) financing activities (FMA)IR&FE 56,385,938 (522,967)

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement FZ&RERER

For the year ended 28 February 2013 #HE-T—=F-_A=-1+/\BIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA#BTTHIR)

28 February
2013

—E—-=F

—BA=+/)\H

29 February
2012
—E——F

—_AZ=-+thH

Net increase in cash and cash ReRBR2EED
equivalents R E 4,453,573 7,205,831
Cash and cash equivalents at FUMZHEE
the beginning of year RIREZEY 9,571,359 2,365,528
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBEE
the end of year RBSEEY 16 14,024,932 9,571,359
Major non-cash transactions: FTEFRERS:

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the written resolution of the directors on 21
June 2012, an amount due from related party amounting
to $2,890,000 (see note 15) was settled with the dividend
declared during the year.

On 5 February 2013, a subsidiary of the Company issued
1,000 shares at par value of $1.00 per share to acquire the
shareholder’s loan, amounted $44,963,406 from its
subsidiary (see note 23(d)(ii)).

(i)

(ii)

BEEEN=_Z——FA=+—HAE
B EERFZER BEUWEESRE
2,890,000/ 7T (R #E15) B & B RN F
RNERZBELEE °

R-ZE—=F_AFAB AA7—HEMH
B A7) 3 771,0000% & B% T E1.0078 7T
Z2BRG NmEMBARKESEA
44,963,406/ 70 2 I R B (R M &+

23(d)(ii)) °

The notes on pages 62 to 128 form part of these financial Z62F128E 7t B RN & ik 22— 2B
statements. n

o
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Bt 5 4 3R B 52

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 June 2012.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“the Group”) are principally engaged in short-term secured
financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and
mortgage loans. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) since 12 March 2013.

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 18 February 2013. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 27 February 2013.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared as if the Group had always been in
existence throughout both years presented, or since the
respective dates of incorporation or establishment of the
group companies, rather than from the date when the
Company became the holding company pursuant to the
Reorganisation.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. Further details of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out below.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. There have been no
significant changes to the accounting policies applied
in these financial statements for the years presented
as a result of these developments. The Group has not
applied any new and revised standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The revised and new accounting
standards and interpretations issued but not yet
effective for the accounting year ended 28 February
2013 are set out in note 30.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2013 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“"HKD"). They are prepared on the historical
cost basis except that financial instruments classified
as trading securities (see note 2(g)) are stated at their
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments is recognised in profit or loss on an
accruals basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating the interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and
points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of

interest income based on the original terms of
the financial assets is discontinued.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

Fee income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where
the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the
customer, or is interest in nature. In these
cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the costs or risk are
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

Disposal gain is recognised when the buyer of
the repossessed assets has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payment receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(BB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account. An investment
in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

The Group classifies its financial instruments
into different categories at inception, depending
on the purpose for which the assets were
acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at
fair value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price plus, in case of a financial
asset or financial liability not held at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset or issue of the financial liability.
Transaction costs on financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Initial recognition (continued)

The Group recognises financial assets and
financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised using
trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using
settlement date accounting. From these dates,
any gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recorded.

Classification

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for
trading which are financial assets acquired or
incurred principally for the purpose of trading.

Financial assets under this category are carried
at fair value. Changes in the fair value are
included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Upon disposal the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
value is included in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, other than
(1) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the near term, which are
classified as held for trading; (2) those that the
Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at
fair value through profit or loss or as available-
for-sale; or (3) those where the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investment,
other than because of credit deterioration, which
will be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and
receivables mainly comprise pawn loans,
mortgages and unsecured loans. Pawn loans are
loans provided whereby personal property such
as gold, jewellery and diamonds, watches and
consumer electronic products are used as
collateral for the security of the loans.
Mortgages are loans secured by real estates and
unsecured loans are loans without collateral.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment losses, if any (see note 2(j)).

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of financial instruments is based
on their quoted market prices at the reporting
date without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at
current bid prices.

A financial asset is derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial
asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired.

The Group uses the weighted average method
to determine realised gains or losses to be
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(i). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 2(j). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment loss, if any (see
note 2(j)). Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line
basis to write off the cost of fixed assets over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold Over the shorter of the

improvements unexpired term of lease or

5 years

—  Furniture and 5 years
fixtures

—  Motor vehicles 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence that financial
assets are impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events which
has an impact on the future cash flows on the
assets that can be estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer

or borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the

borrower.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount
is reduced to the estimated recoverable amount
by means of a charge to profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of loans
and receivables, which are measured at
amortised cost, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that borrower are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets). Receivables with a
short duration are not discounted if the effect
of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for impairment losses
consists of two components: individual
impairment allowances, and collective
impairment allowances.

BENXERERARAR

(BB HEAESN  ABTTHIR)

RMEBEREREETE
B - RS TR
MEESERBAERER
AR MR 2 B R R K
IR (3% # 35 P A 5 E2)
R MERBES - £
BEIEITS - JR{E B 1R R R R
BRARR © i N & B 15 A
Ym 2 ATRE M ARAR - RIARAR
RERRE 2 2 AR ER
REWSIRREEMEE - M
BBk 45 A A B %
fERAZE AR -
SRR BEERPHBRER
HZWE 2 58 8 R w R
O - BHERZEMESHR
H g W@ 58 A B & MEE 2

RIARBEER -

BN e W R IR 2R B B
BIONEERBERNE
E 2R B R (B E A
HHERZREFEERTEZ
BB R) TR ARKR
EREZBREBEZAZEZR
AECMTAABERY
£ AEHRERIENTH
i o

RMEBERERELREM
BB - BRI R B B s K EE BB
AR B -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant,
and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be
recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together financial
assets with similar risk characteristics.

The individual impairment allowance is based
upon management’s best estimate of the
present value of cash flows which are expected
to be received discounted at the original
effective interest rate. In estimating these cash
flows, management make judgements about the
borrower’s financial situation and the net
realisable value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees in favour of the Group. Each
impaired asset is assessed on its merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment
allowances, management uses statistical
modelling and considers historical trends of
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, and economic factors. In order
to estimate the required allowance, the Group
makes assumptions both to define the way the
Group models inherent losses and to determine
the required input parameters, based on
historical experience and current economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HEAESN  ABTTHIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)
Where there is no reasonable prospect of

recovery, the loan and the
receivables are written off.

Other assets

(ii)

related

interest

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that other assets may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such

indication exists,

the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment

loss s

recognised whenever the carrying

amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable

amount.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in

use.
estimated future

In assessing value
cash flows

the
are

in use,

discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of

assets that generates

cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable

amount.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to the statement of comprehensive income
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted
under the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the
laws of Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of
the collateral assets from the customers. This
possession takes place once a loan becomes overdue,
subject to a grace period granted at the discretion of
the Group in certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the
amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on
the date of repossession, which is generally below the
net realisable value of the repossessed assets. Upon
repossession of the assets, the related loans and
advances together with the related impairment
allowances, if any, are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently,
repossessed assets are carried at the lower of the
amount initially recognised or net realisable value and
are therefore written down if and when the net
realisable value falls to below the carrying amount of
the asset. The excess of the net proceeds over the
carrying amount of the repossessed assets is
recognised as a gain upon the disposal of the assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & B &%

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Accruals and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R &R i sE

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to business combinations, or
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary difference support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— In the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— In the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  The same taxable entity; or

—  Different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as
defined contribution schemes. The employer’s
monthly contributions to the scheme are at a
maximum of 5% of each employee’s monthly
salary, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000, or $25,000 after 1 June
2012.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to
profit or loss of the Group for the vyear
concerned and the assets of all these schemes
are held separately from those of the Group.

Certain of the Group’s employees have
completed the required number of years of
service to the Group in order to be eligible for
long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that
such a termination of employment meets the
circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable
future long service payments based on the best
estimate of the probable future outflow of
resources which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group at
the reporting date.

BENEXERERARAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

(b)  (continued)
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial statements provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of businesses and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
of class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 3R R sF

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are the granting of
pawn loans and mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

Turnover represents interest income earned on pawn loans
and mortgages and gain on disposal of repossessed assets.
The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year are as follows:

Interest earned on loan receivables & U& & FX BT Bt B 2 A &

3
AEEEEXBAAETERRALH
RRRBERER -

BRI B R IR 18 W P SRR
ZHBWAR R HELKEEEZ K
@ RERNERRERBELEERK
BRIz BRWT

28 February 29 February

2013 2012
—B-=%

—E—_4F
—_B=+/H —A=+hA8
$ $

— Pawn loans — HEBER 56,722,057 52,350,742
— Mortgages — RIEE A 7,955,494 3,192,311
64,677,551 55,543,053

Gain on disposal of repossessed &Lk e & E 2 s
assets 7,062,344 10,817,568
71,739,895 66,360,621

Cost of repossessed assets disposed for the year ended 28
February 2013 amounted to $61 million (2012: $56 million).

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not have
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenue during the year (2012: Nil).

Segment reporting

The Group has one reportable segment, which is the
provision of short-term secured financing business in Hong
Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans. Therefore,
no additional reportable segment and geographical
information have been presented.

BE-_ZT-—=F_A-t+tN\BHILFE"
LU B E E Z K A £61,000,0007% 7T
— T — 4 :56,000,000/ 7T) °

ARBEZEFERZ T BYEER
FPREASBETBARNEEFE RS
10% (ZF—=—F:F)Z2XH °

7B E
AEBE—HILRHEH NRES
REENARARERY  BEAY
ERREBEAER - At HE2
FIBINT2H/D BRILEEH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %& 3R & i 5

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

84

5 Other revenue and net income 5 HtWmRENEFEE
28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—E—=%f —ZE—=F
—BA=+/\H —A=thH
$ $
Other revenue Hibd =
Rental income HE2 WA 737,494 675,511
Dividend income from trading EEESMESE
securities Z B B U A 133 160
Interest earned on unsecured loans &K & X FTBREL 2 F] B 25,304 84,222
Credit related fee income FEHEBEBRKA 193,000 67,542
Bank interest income HRITH B A A 403 380
Others HAth 653,869 12,501
1,610,203 840,316
Other net income HbUNFHE
Net realised and unrealised gain/ BEERHFCERARKRER
(loss) on trading securities Wik (E18) %8 234 (898)
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HERETFEE 2 R=ZFE — 123,910
234 123,012

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53k 3% K5t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

6 B %inmia Fl

(@) RERE

28 February

BB R a M TSR AT R IBRER

29 February

2013 2012
—_E—=% —E——F
—BA=+N\H —A=t+hH
$ $
Finance charges on obligations A E e

under finance leases ZEEEH 20,907 31,379

Interest on bank loans and ERAEFRNBHEEEZ

overdrafts wholly repayable RITERREZHE
within five years 800,752 110,495
821,659 141,874

(b) BEIEE

(b) Staff costs

28 February

29 February

2013 2012
—E—-=f —E——fF
—HA=+/H —AZ=+NH
$ $
Salaries and other benefits e R EAMMRER 13,515,693 12,536,561
Directors’ remuneration (note 9)  EE @& (M :9) 1,120,378 545,278
Contributions to defined TE FE M RGET Bl 2 K
contribution scheme 403,487 400,076
Provision for long service REVIR TS © B
payment 236,350 52,278
15,275,908 13,534,193 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 %5 iR 3= Bt 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB EEAEIN  LUBTTHIR)

6

Profit before taxation (continued) 6
(c) Other operating expenses

Premises and equipment expenses NEFEITE 2 E K&K

B i Al iim ¥l (48)
(€ HpEEMEX

28 February
2013

—®¥—-=F

—A=-+/)\H
$

29 February
2012
—EF——F
—A=-t+hH
$

excluding depreciation: X

— rental of premises — MEHES 7,443,151 7,232,735

— maintenance, repairs and — RE HBEREM
others 697,202 641,859
8,140,353 7,874,594
Listing expenses EmRAX 11,161,468 —
Auditors’ remuneration = B RN B & 300,000 110,000
Depreciation (note 12) & (M 3E12) 426,764 324,723
Advertising expenses EERZ 2,841,006 2,102,228
Others H ity 4,028,452 3,181,297
18,757,690 5,718,248
42,173,951 27,127,035

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Notes to the Financial Statements B4 %5 R R Fi st

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 Impairment losses on loan receivables 7

Impairment losses on loan
receivables
— Individual impairment losses
(credited)/charged to profit or

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

FRWERZBERBE

29 February
2012

28 February
2013

—E—-=f —E—_F

—BA=+/\H —A=-+AhH
$ $

EWERZ REEBRE

— REHEGIA) Nk
2 A 5B R (B 5 1R

loss (note 13(a)) (Bt £ 13@)) (79,312) 139,170
— Collective impairment losses — RiE=MBR(GEA)
charged/(credited) to profit or ZEEREEBRE
loss (note 13(a)) (Mt 7 13(@)) 129,090 (62,741)
49,778 76,429

8 Income tax in the consolidated statements

of comprehensive income
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of (@)

8 MESEEWBERZAEHR

REEEZEWERZHBIERE:

comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong

29 February
2012
—ET——F
—A=-+/\H —R=+AAR
$ $

28 February
2013

—E—=F

EABIE — FEAGH

Profits Tax
Provision for the year (note 21(a)) & ## (M 5£21(a)) 7,033,162 6,542,234
Under-provision in respect BEFERETR

of prior years 539,412 =

7,572,574 6,542,234

Deferred tax i N $ 1E
Origination and reversal EAEREEEEEERE

of temporary differences (B 5E21(b))

(note 21(b)) 26,429 60,322
Tax expense AR X 7,599,003 6,602,556
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R R sF

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

REEEERBRRZHEHR

8 Income tax in the consolidated statements 8

of comprehensive income (continued) (48)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of () REL2EWBFZHIEE:
comprehensive income represents: (continued) (%)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated RER  BEEMNERBEIRR
at 16.5% to the estimated assessable profits for the (e FEER R R 2165% & -
year, except for that of the Sole Proprietorship W T8 8 4 A% 2 7% I 32 i =1 JE 2B 4
Businesses which is calculated at 15% of the A 2 15%EHE o
estimated assessable profits.
The Group has received an enquiry from the Inland 7N £ B B 8 5 B S Bk — o B B
Revenue Department regarding certain tax matters in AR ——F /——FETH
respect of a subsidiary in year of assessment 2011/12. EFEZEFREEEELE Y S
The directors have concluded that any potential o BEDRAMTAEE Y I
additional tax exposure is not material. FHIERBI R E A -

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HERBEHEZHEETHS

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

stifs FI ¥ AR WO F

28 February

29 February

2013 2012
—F-=% —E——F
—A=+/\H —A=-+AhH
$ $
Profit before taxation B Tt A s Al 30,304,944 39,978,611
Notional tax on profit before B B % ) 2 B & T IE
taxation, calculated at the rates (REBEEE T
applicable to profits in the ZHEABEGTEH)
entities concerned 4,976,400 6,520,049
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  3E & &R 7 Uk 25
ZRBRE (127) (89)
Tax effect of non-deductible IR LA
expenses 2RI 2,083,318 118,596
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERBETR 539,412 —
Others HAty — (36,000)
Actual tax expense ERRIERX 7,599,003 6,602,556

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53k 3% K5t

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

EEfE
BREEFBQARIKEHBEIEHEEZES
B &R

9 Directors’ remuneration 9
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Year ended 28 February 2013 HE-_FT—=%"_A=-+/N\BLLEE

Contributions

Salaries, to Mandatory
Directors’ allowances and Discretionary Provident
fees benefits in kind bonuses Fund
e BMR HEMARSE
EEie: HoEPiR BB #x
$ $
Executive directors BiTES
Chan Kai Ho, Edward PR B = — 556,600 — 10,000 566,600
Chan Ying Yu R EH) — 106,250 — 5,250 111,500
Chan Chart Man BREX - 146,694 - — 146,694
Chan Mei Fong BREFR — 283,334 — 12,250 295,584
Non-executive director ¥RTES
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion BR AR Bk — — — — —
Independent non- BIARITESE
executive directors
Chan Wing Lee BR 5k — — - — -
Leung Shiu Ki | 9 — — — — —
Yip Ngai ER — — — — —
Total e — 1,092,878 — 27,500 1,120,378
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %& 3R & i 5

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

EEME(E)
BE-S-—#£-A-thBLEE

9 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9
Year ended 29 February 2012

Contributions
Salaries,
allowances and

to Mandatory

Directors’ Discretionary Provident

bonuses Fund

fees  benefits in kind

e EMR B EAES
E=fe EMEDAR IIBIEA e
$
Executive directors BITES
Chan Kai Ho, Edward €T = 7,600 = = 7,600
Chan Ying Yu PR & H = 96,000 = 4,825 100,825
Chan Chart Man Bk 58 32 = 144,853 = — 144,853
Chan Mei Fong BREF = 280,000 = 12,000 292,000
Non-executive director FERITES
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion Bk B Bk = = = = =
Independent non- BIUAFRNITES
executive directors

Chan Wing Lee R ok ) — — — — —
Leung Shiu Ki R = = = = =
Yip Ngai ER — — - — -
Total wat — 528,453 — 16,825 545,278

No directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration RERN BEEEHNEXRENET

during the year (2012: Nil). No remuneration was paid to Ae(ZE—=—F:ZEHF L) NF

the independent non-executive directors and non-executive A BESNBYIERITESRIER

director during the year (2012: Nil). TEEARNFCE——-F: 2%
JT) °

RERN AEBYTEXNRENTE
ELETXMFEI0OMBERMALRRDH
£ 3R - AR TS| 1% 0 B =X
MBAREERZ BRI RRRHEE

(ZE—=F:ZTFT) -

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable by
the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 10 below as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2012: Nil).

QO Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEERAR AR



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53k 3% K5t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) — (BxSBEAEIN - LABITTIIR)

10

Individuals with highest emoluments 10 =EHMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one TEGERFATHE—R(ZE—_5F:
(2012: Nil) is director whose emoluments are disclosed in EZ)VEEE  HEMWBEENWE -
note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the MRTOBAT(ZE—ZF - RA)ZH
remaining four (2012: five) are as follows: B AREB 0T
28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—E—=% —ET——F
—A=+/\H ZA=Z+NH
$ $
Salaries and other emoluments e K& E A 1,172,156 1,564,815
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4T 715,276 521,529
Contributions to Mandatory o B NE S HR
Provident Fund 57,000 60,000
Others Hth 15,200 15,200
1,959,632 2,161,544
The above individuals with the highest emoluments are FilEEFHM 2 AL 2 HEEATE
within the following bands: A

28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—B—-=f —E——F
—A=+N\H —RA=t+AH

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE A#

$Nil-$1,000,000 Z 7T 2£1,000,0007% 7T 4 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R R sF

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BikEF

11 Earnings per share 1"

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 28 February 2013 of
$22,705,941 (2012: $33,376,055) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue during
the year calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BREEET

BREXRBFTBEARRD B E =R R
EEEEZE_ZT—=F_A_-+/\BHItF
& 4 §)22,705,9418 T (ZF —=—F:
33,376,055870) © A RERAQF D E
TERBRNEFHEAE  SH0T:

BB R T #

28 February
2013
—T-=%5
—A=+N\H

Number of
shares

k&8

29 February
2012
—E——F
—AZ+thAH
Number of
shares

&5 &8

A SZ B B TR

Effect of issue at date of

Q2

incorporation (note 23(c)(i)) 52 2 (Mt 523(0))) 1 1
Effect of shares issued under the BEEEMETRGD

Reorganisation (note 23(c)(ii)) 52 2 (M 5E23(c)(i)) 9,999,999 9,999,999
Effect of capitalisation issue BRbET2E

(note 31(b)) (BT 5E31(b) 290,000,000 290,000,000
Weighted average number of T im AR hn 4 T B

ordinary shares 300,000,000 300,000,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 29 February 2012 has been adjusted for the 1
share, 9,999,999 shares and 290,000,000 shares issued at
date of incorporation, pursuant to the Reorganisation and
the capitalisation issue which took place upon the
completion of the public offering and placing of the
Company’s shares, respectively, which were assumed to
occur at 1 March 2011.

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there was no
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both years.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEXRAR AR

EEHE-E——F_A-f+hHBLF
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BEARRAR G RO ARAZEE R
EXRBETZENMBITHMBITLZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 %5 iR R Fi st

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

. = s
12 Fixed assets 12 EBE&EE
(@) Fixed assets (a) BEE&E
The Group K £ [E
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles
HEYELKE KARKE RE
$ $ $
Cost: 5% NH
At 1 March 2011 R=T——%=F—8H 3,691,930 2,112,070 1,334,816 7,138,816
Additions NE 14,394 240,068 830,000 1,084,462
Disposals HE = = (826,816) (826,816)
At 29 February 2012 RZZT—=—F=-FA=+ANH 3,706,324 2,352,138 1,338,000 7,396,462
Accumulated depreciation: Bitine:
At 1 March 2011 RZT——F=A—H 3,480,782 1,686,985 838,726 6,006,493
Charge for the year FAZH 55,507 117,050 152,166 324,723
Write back on disposals R = = (330,727) (330,727)
At 29 February 2012 R=ZZT—=—F=-A=+AIHE 3,536,289 1,804,035 660,165 6,000,489
Net book value: MR F(E :
At 29 February 2012 R=ZZT—=—F=-A=+AhBH8 170,035 548,103 677,835 1,395,973

Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles
HEYREE KARRKE RE
$ $ $
Cost: BA:
At 1 March 2012 RZZE—=—F=A—H 3,706,324 2,352,138 1,338,000 7,396,462
Additions NE 381,855 306,765 — 688,620
Disposals ek = = = =
At 28 February 2013 RZZE—=F=ZA=+\H 4,088,179 2,658,903 1,338,000 8,085,082
Accumulated depreciation: HEtivE:
At 1 March 2012 R=ZZE—=F=A—H 3,536,289 1,804,035 660,165 6,000,489
Charge for the year FAXH 85,399 175,365 166,000 426,764
Write back on disposals A B B = = = =
At 28 February 2013 R=ZZE—=%=-A=+N\H 3,621,688 1,979,400 826,165 6,427,253
Net book value: REFE:
At 28 February 2013 RZZT—=%=-A=+N\H 466,491 679,503 511,835 1,657,829
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %% 3R & ki 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB EEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

12 Fixed assets (continued) 12 BEEEE)

(b) Fixed assets held under finance leases (b) REMEHEEMBECETEE
The Group leases motor vehicle under finance lease AEBERBE-_T—RAFEMZ
expiring until 2015. At the end of the lease term the MEMREREERE - RNHEEHE
Group has the option to purchase the leased vehicle REF - AEEBREGSAERC
at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. EEEEEHERE - HEHE
None of the lease includes contingent rentals. BEXAEE -

13 Loan receivables 13 BKER
The Group
XEH
28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—E—-=f —E——F
—RA=+/N\H —A=-+AhH
$ $
Pawn loans HEE N 117,321,040 118,017,870
Mortgages % 18 5 A 113,475,375 32,644,515
Unsecured loans ERBER — 485,208
Gross loan receivables JFE IR B R 4R RE 230,796,415 151,147,593
Less: Impairment allowance R E B (M E13@)
(note 13(a))
— Individually assessed — fE B FE & (59,858) (139,170)
— Collectively assessed — BERMG (184,481) (55,391)
(244,339) (194,561) )
230,552,076 150,953,032
Current portion included under FIRMBEEERT
current assets Z BNERER (200,752,663) (144,350,102)
Amounts due after one year FIRERBEEIERT
included under non-current assets N —F1& E B 5 I8 29,799,413 6,602,930

QA Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited REMEEEERERAR]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13 Loan receivables (continued)
(@) Movement in impairment losses

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

13 BUMERE)
() 38 B 5 48 4 B

The Group
FHRE
28 February 2013 29 February 2012
—¥—-=f£-A=+N\H —f#-A=+ANAH
Individual Collective Total Individual Collective Total
18 5l 3] st & 51 e #Et
$ $ $ $ $ $
At 1 March R=A—H 139,170 55,391 194,561 — 118,132 118,132
Impairment losses charged/(credited) REBEEMEGEA)
to profit or loss (note 7) Z R AE B 1R (B 32 7) (79,312) 129,090 49,778 139,170 (62,741) 76,429
At 28/29 February R=ZA=+N\B/=thBH 59,858 184,481 244,339 139,170 55,391 194,561
(b) Ageing analysis (b) ER&E 9

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due

REDMIDEREHNIHAR

date. Bl o
The Group
AEHE
Unsecured
Pawn loans Mortgages loans
BEER 1218 1 49 EHREAER
$ $ $
28 February 2013 —E—-=F
—A=+/\H
Neither past due nor impaired 4% 38 B SO (B 114,123,740 113,475,375 = 227,599,115
Less than 1 month past due BELOREAR 2,566,000 = = 2,566,000
1 to 3 months past due AE1E3E A 631,300 = = 631,300
117,321,040 113,475,375 — 230,796,415
29 February 2012 —E—-=%
—HA=+hH
Neither past due nor impaired 1 4 360 A =% R B 114,782,170 32,644,515 485,208 147,911,893
Less than 1 month past due BELR1E A 2,632,000 = = 2,632,000
1 to 3 months past due BmENE3EA 603,700 = = 603,700
118,017,870 32,644,515 485,208 151,147,593

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set

out in note 24(a).

FRASBEEERFE-HFE

& 2 7 K 5 24() ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB EEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

14 Trading securities 14

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, & & M I AN 3% 2
at fair value ZRAYE

A
it
I?ﬂlﬁ
L

The Group
£
28 February 29 February
2013 2012

—E—-=%5 —ET——F
—BA=+/H —AZ=TNH
$ $

— 3,789

15 Trade and other receivables 15

BESRHEMEKRIE

The Group The Company
xEE AEATF

28 February 29 February 28 February

2013 2012 2013

= =—ZT—-F5 CZEB—=f
—B=+)\B —A=-t+thHB Z—AZ=+/NAH

$ $

Trade receivables B 5 WK IA 421,400 2,243,050 —
Interest receivables & W ) = 10,311,661 9,589,986 —
Deposits and payments in advance & & & & 1% 318 2,308,191 1,709,334 —
Amount due from a related fE U — B EE i A A

company A — 2,890,000 —
Prepaid listing expenses Tt £ 3,570,490 = 3,570,490
Other assets Hit&E 101,500 101,500 -

16,713,242 16,533,870 3,570,490

Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date of
billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not
impaired and expected to be recovered within one year.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
note 24(a).

The amount due from a related company was unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Qé Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEXRAR AR

ESRWHIBEEZEERBARFT60RA
FE - FTBEE S K H A FEWRIBE R
WA WEHR —FAKE - BER
SEEERREMFBERINWZE
24(a) °

ER—HEEARRASEER 2
BRmEREE -



Notes to the Financial Statements B4 %5 iR R Fi st

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BEAEIN  LABITTIIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that is neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

15 BESRAEMBURIEE)
R 5 8 o 3k T 2 R 8 9 4
¥ m AR KRR AL IRAE
508 W FORBREE DT

follows:
The Group
*5E

28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—E—-=f —E—_F
—A=+/)\BH —AZ=+hH
$ $
Neither past due nor impaired 1% 42 %60 HA 5k R B 301,400 2,243,050
Less than 1 month past due BEHDREA 120,000 —
421,400 2,243,050

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
an independent customer that has a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

WEB SR EZ Y RIAES B
BOIMBOLBZEFPER -

EafErEREZEBERELE S
HEASEARFEECHZIBIEP
BB -REBELR ARFEEEXR
WEBANE BREBEGERTDBER
AEHKE HEEERRBARZ
EHBIELEMRERE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB EEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

16 Cash and cash equivalents 16 RERBFEZEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: HeRBcEEYVEE:

The Group The Company
ARE AAT

28 February 29 February 28 February
2013 2012 2013

—E—-=5 —T——F Z¥—Z=%5
—A=+/\B —A=+hB ZB=+NAH

$ $ $
Cash in hand FHRE 4,762,836 4,489,700 —
Cash at banks RITHE < 15,015,543 5,933,396 20,132

Cash and cash equivalents in the REIEAR AKX 2]
statements of financial position e RESEEY 19,778,379 10,423,096 20,132

Bank overdrafts (note 17) R1TE (M 7E17) (5,753,447) (851,737)

Cash and cash equivalents in the MHEABELRER
consolidated cash flow ZHReEMRBEEE
statements B 14,024,932 9,571,359

Q8 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEXRAR AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BEAEIN  LABITTIIR)

17 Bank loans and overdrafts 17 RITERREX
The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as RITERRELZFBOT:
follows:

The Group
A%HE
28 February 29 February
2013 2012

—F-=% —E-_F
—A=-+/\H —HAR=+AR
$ $

Secured bank overdrafts (note 17(a) A EIARITHE X

(P 5E17¢a)) 449,156 851,737
Unsecured bank overdrafts EIRBIRITE X
(note 17(b)) (B 3E17(0)) 5,304,291 —
5,753,447 851,737 -
Bank loans, secured (note 17(c)) MITER - BHEM
(P 5E17(0)) 49,000,000 —
Bank loans, unsecured (note 17(d)) RITE R - EIKH
(Bt 3E17(d)) 13,760,000 2,500,000
62,760,000 2,500,000__
Total bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBE LB
— repayable within 1 year or on — MFERHIREREE
demand 68,513,447 3,351,737
(@) At 28 February 2013, secured bank overdraft facilities @ RZE—=F-_A=+NRA K&
of $7,000,000 (2012: $8,000,000) were provided and %] 7% 12 ££7,000,0007 T B R
utilised to the extent of $449,156 (2012: $851,737). TEXBRECET - F:
The facilities were secured by personal guarantee 8,000,000/ 7T) It 8 A & %
deposits of a director and his spouse (see note 449,156/8 7T (ZZF ——_4 : 851,737
26(d)). BIL) c WEREBEHR—REER

HECE 2 B AT RERIEET (R
Bt 3 26(d)) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

At 28 February 2013, an unsecured bank overdraft
facility of $15,000,000 (2012: Nil) was provided and
utilised to the extent of $5,304,291 (2012: Nil). The
facilities were secured by the joint personal guarantee
of two directors (see note 26(g)).

During the year ended 28 February 2013, an
uncommitted secured revolving bank loan facility of
the lower of $55 million or a certain percentage of
the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage loan
receivables of the Group which are then sub charged/
sub-mortgaged to the bank was obtained. The tenor
for the facility ranged from one month, two months,
three months or six months as selected by the Group.
As at 28 February 2013, the available uncommitted
banking facility after taking into consideration of the
drawdown was approximately $5 million which was
secured by loan receivables of the Group with a
carrying value of approximately $67 million. The
facility was secured by the joint personal guarantee of
two directors (see note 26(e)).

At 28 February 2013, unsecured bank loan facilities of
$13,760,000 (2012: $5,000,000) were provided and
utilised to the extent of $13,760,000 (2012:
$2,500,000). The facilities were secured by the joint
personal guarantee of two directors (see note 26(g)).

During the year, the Group's banking facilities are not
subject to the fulfilment of financial covenants.

BENEXERERARAR

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(b)

R-ZT—=%F"_H=-+N\B ' &&
B & % ££15,000,000/% JT £ 1
BITEIRE(ZE——F: T8
J0) » I ) A & %5,304,2917%5 7T
(ZZ——F T WEGME
THMBES A EAERE
A (R 5E26()) ©

REBE-_ZET—=%-_A=-+NHR
IFEE AEERS—HEEAR
EEBBERFETERRE &8
755,000,000 JT sk AN & @ H BF
AR IRIE T IR 1T 2 R WUIE 18 1K
BEFASBEB 2 REAE L
BERE BMEZRBA—M@EA -
MEA  Z@AxA~EATSE -
HAKEERE HN-_TE—=F=
AZ+N\HB s RERIKE -
AIHAEABERTREND A
5,000,000 7 ' ZEMENAE
B BR E B 49 567,000,000/ JT 2
JEWESREERR - HERETIH
MBE S 28 A B AEREERT
(R K 5E26()) °

R-ZEBE—=F_A=-+NB  &&
& 7% 12 ££13,760,00078 JT £ 1K 7
BTERRECE —=—F:
5,000,000 JT)+ I ) A & %
13,760,000/ jT(= & — = F:
2,500,000/ 7T) © L E B & Ty |
B E R A EABRERE
(R BT 5£E26()) °

RER AEERITREHAZE
P B 75 225
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

18 Accruals and other payables

19

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

18 BT ERRH &M RIE

The Group The Company

£ 48

28 February 29 February 28 February

2013 2012 2013

—E2—Z=F —E——F Z¥—Z=%¥

—A=+N\NB —A=+hB ZHA=+/H

$ $ $

Accrued expenses fEETE A 3,666,075 576,212 2,575,000
Provision for long services AR © # 1

payment 529,574 306,382 —

Other payable and deposit H A FE 7t 5B
received REWERZE S 1,363,736 1,545,012 —
5,559,385 2,427,606 2,575,000

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are

repayable on demand.

Obligations under finance leases
The Group had obligations under finance leases repayable

as follows:

FERERAREMENKRIEAR

H
—FRBBRERRBBAIIZER

IR °

19

MEHERIE

AEBREREECREHERENT:

28 February 2013
—E—-=%-HA=+/H

Present value of
the minimum

lease payments

Total minimum
lease payments

29 February 2012
—E——F-A=-+hH

Present value of
the minimum
lease payments

Total minimum
lease payments

i

8

REHAE RRAE RIEHAE

RIERE MIEEE RBEE

$ $ $
Within 1 year 1F A 165,511 178,752 157,845 178,752
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F % B5F R 188,384 193,648 353,895 372,400
353,895 372,400 511,740 551,152

Less: Total future interest expenses 3 : AR K& B %

18R (18,505) (39,412)
Present value of lease obligations HEAEBRE 353,895 511,740
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 Employee retirement benefits

21

Defined contribution retirement plan

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administrated by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000, or
$25,000 after 1 June 2012. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Income tax in the consolidated statements

of financial position
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

Provision for Hong Kong Profits

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

20

21

AEREEBNESHEE

EEERKEFR

5 2A 4 7R R ET El
ANEBEIRIEE B HMEQE S EE
BIARBEBEERANREZERZE 2
EERMHEMFEATEeTE(HEES
AEDEBETZRKER - B2
A—HABUYUSITATE Z EHEER
RIKFTE - BERESTE BER
HEBESBARNTEIEEBEENES
HEAWAS% ZE - AFAMBBE KA
20,0007T 825,000 T (RN —_F — 4
ANA—B®)A LR - Mtz A
BB o

RESMBRARZHEH

(@) MRESHBRRARZODHBIE

=

29 February
2012
—E——fF
—A=+NH —A=+AH
) $

28 February
2013

—T—=F

Tax for the year (note 8(a)) (Fff £ 8(a)) 7,033,162 6,542,234
Provisional Profits Tax paid B 1B E TS (3,480,652) (3,287,063)
3,552,510 3,255,171

Balance of Profits Tax provision AT E HE
relating to prior years 2 ) 13T B 4 2,309,837 (47,138)
5,862,347 3,208,033

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEXRAR AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB A1ERAESN LA

21 Income tax in the consolidated statements

of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in
the statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from: EEBIFHRH :

FETTHIR)

21 REEMBRARZHAEH

(%)

b) EHEBZBEREZEE:
BT R B B 32 I SR IR
EEARBHUERRER L ED
mT -

The related
depreciation
in excess of
depreciation

allowances

BATERE
Z HH R &
$

Impairment
losses on loans
and advances
EXRRER
ZBEEBE

$

At 1 March 2011 RN_T——4F
=A—H 263,442 19,492 282,934
Charged to profit or loss W18 = Bk
(note 8(a)) (Bt 5E8(a)) (49,970) (10,352) (60,322)
At 29 February 2012 RZE—=F
—A=-+h8 213,472 9,140 222,612
At 1 March 2012 R-_E——F
=A—H 213,472 9,140 222,612
(Charged)/credited to profit ~ RiBx (F1K)
or loss (note 8(a)) st A (B 7£8(@)) (47,728) 21,299 (26,429)
At 28 February 2013 N —=
—A=+N\H 165,744 30,439 196,183

22 Amounts due to shareholders
The amounts due to shareholders were unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable within one year. The balances of
amounts due to shareholders were settled by the issuance
of ordinary shares of a subsidiary of the Company on 5
February 2013 (see note 23(d)(ii)).

22 EfBRERIE
EABREREAEERR 2B REBA
R—FANEE BHEBENREREL
BRER-ZE—=F_ARBBEB/ETAR
AEl—EHBAR 2L BN (KM
& 23(d)(ii)) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends 23 EFX - EERESR
(@) Movement in components of equity () H#EZBHZ2E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBEGEER S EKID B
balances of each component of the Group’s HHRERZ BRI N GEEER
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated BE)K o AR A E (B #E % 48 BKED
statement of changes in equity. Details of the DR B R FRZ &
changes in the Company’s individual components of BT

equity between the date of incorporation and the end
of the year are set out below:

The Company KR A]

Share Other Accumulated
capital reserve losses

BRE Hitf#E RithE

At 5 June 2012 (date of NR-ZEB—-%<AAH
incorporation) (&E M B 32 B #1) — — — -
Changes in equity for 2013: Z—®¥—=4%
ZHESEE:
Total comprehensive income for A4 [E 2 @K A 58
the year = = (11,345,769) (11,345,769)
Issue of shares upon the BHAMBETRM
Reorganisation 23(c)(ii) 100,000 56,963,506 — 57,063,506
At 28 February 2013 R-T—=%
=—H=+AH 100,000 56,963,506  (11,345,769) 45,717,737
(b) Dividends (b) ER
(i)  Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the () FAESEARAIERZBER
Company attributable to the year: 2B
The directors do not recommend the payment EETEBEEE=ZS—=
of final dividend for the year ended 28 FZAZTNBIEFEIRE
February 2013. REARR B -

| OA Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited REMEEEERERAR]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BEAEIN  LABITTIIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23 BX - HERKRA(E

(b) Dividends (continued) (b) BRE(E)

(i)  Dividends declared and paid to the original (i) M-ZE—=fF-"A+/\HE
equity shareholders of Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit TR BEREEE
Limited (“Oi Wah H.K.”), formerly known as Oi BRARI(EESRE] Al
Wah Pawnshop Holding Limited, prior to the BEERXEEEREBR
completion of the Reorganisation on 18 AR AERERKREET IR
February 2013: KR AR R
—  During the year ended 29 February 2012, — HEZZT—-F-A

Oi Wah H.K. declared and paid interim —t+tABLEFE-
dividends of HK$0.10 per share (totalling SERBNEHATK
HK$1,000,000) to its original equity AMERE=RREE
shareholders prior to the completion of &R R ER B E
the Reorganisation. B A 17 0.107% 7T (A &
1,000,000 7t °
—  During the year ended 28 February 2013, — HEZZ—=F-FA
Oi Wah H.K. also declared and paid final Z+NBLEEE &
dividends of $0.579 per share (totalling ERBNBBEITK
$5,790,000) in respect of previous FEMERERRKRRE
financial year and interim dividends of Bk ROR T REAAR B
$0.30 per share (totalling $3,000,000) to i% P& 150.5797% T
its original equity shareholders. 4 515,790,000 7T)
K EiRR B3 IR AR (D
0.30%8 (& &F
3,000,000 7T) °
(c) Share capital () =X
() Authorised and issued share capital () EEREFETRA
Nominal value
Number of ordinary
Par value of shares shares
H{E BB TEREEEE
$
Authorised: EE:
At 5 June 2012 (date of R=ZZF—=—FX~AHA
incorporation) (FEf A 32 B 5) 0.01 38,000,000 380,000
Increase in share capital RZZE—=F-ZA+NH
on 19 February 2013 £ A 0.01  99962,000,000 999,620,000
At 28 February 2013 R-E—=%-A—1/\B 0.01  100,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBRTRAR:
At 5 June 2012 (date of RZZE—=-F-AHA
incorporation) (Gl ava=E: )] 0.01 1 0.01
Issue of shares upon the ERMBITRG
Reorganisation 23(0)(i) 0.01 9,999,999 99,999.99
At 28 February 2013 R-E—=F-A—1/\8 0.01 10,000,000 100,000.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

The Company was incorporated on 5 June 2012
with an authorised share capital of $380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of $0.01 each.
Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of the
shareholders of the Company passed on 19
February 2013, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased to $1,000,000,000
by the creation of an additional
99,962,000,000 shares of $0.01 each.

The holders of shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the Company. All shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Share capital presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity at 1 March
2011, 29 February 2012 and 1 March 2012
represented the combined amount of paid-in
capital of the entities comprising the Group.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
dated 18 February 2013, the Company acquired
all issued shares of Oi Wah Holding Limited
from its then shareholders, in consideration of
which the Company, at the direction of the
then shareholders of Oi Wah Holding Limited,
allotted and issued 9,999,999 shares, as fully-
paid shares, to Kwan Lik Holding Limited.

BENEXERERARAR

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

ARABRZE—ZF X
ARAFMK I FFE
B 7K /380,000 T (9D A
38,000,0000% & I I {E0.01
BILZ D) c BIE-T—
=FE-AThBBEBZARA
AIREEBEAZRE B8
1 2% %8 5199,962,000,000 A%
FREE0.0NE T Z IR
BARRZETERALINE
1,000,000,0005% 7T °

B15 B A R T B E
BB - A ERAAT
EHLRERBHR—Z -
FERGEAATZ FHE
ENZHRZA -

WR—_E——&F=HA—H -
—E——HF-RA=F+NBK
TE-—F=-A—HZ&KHA
B8R IBRA EE
RAEE 2 ERBIEHE
KEPrEE -

RIEHBHAE T —=F_A
TNRZEE&EWHZE  ARQA
m) B8 B IR SR UL B8 Oi Wah
Holding Limited 2 & & 2 %
TRt KERARRAFIR
Oi Wah Holding Limited
BRRR B BC R E
79,999,9998% & & A 17

Kwan Lik Holding Limited



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

There is no section in the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and article of association
governing the distribution of reserves. At 28
February 2013, the aggregate amount of
reserve available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $45,717,737.

There was no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 29 February 2012 as the
Company was incorporated on 5 June 2012.

On 5 February 2013, Oi Wah Holding Limited
entered into an agreement to acquire the
amounts due to shareholders by Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Limited totalling $44,963,406
by issuing 1,000 shares at $1.00, as fully-paid
shares, to three of the shareholders of the
Company. The acquisition has been reflected as
a reduction in the amounts due to shareholders
and a corresponding increase in capital reserve
during the year.

On 18 February 2013, the then shareholders
transferred the entire equity interest in Oi Wah
Holding Limited to the Company, in return, the
Company issue 9,999,999 shares, as fully-paid
shares to Kwan Lik Holding Limited as the
consideration. The difference between the
historical carrying value of equity acquired and
acquisition consideration is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Other reserve”.

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

FAEBSRRERAARZ
HBERARMLREIRMEA
WEEED IR ZEEL - R
T—=Ff"A=+N\HB 'K
DRI IR R 2 Al 5 R A
4258 5 45,717,7378 7L °

RZTE—=—F=-_A=+h
B WEJEDIRTREZ
i AAERRAIR=ZZ—
“EXNARBFEMK -

RZZE—=F="AFAH " O
Wah Holding Limitedz] 37—
EHipi  SRRARE =4
P& R 3£ 171,0000% & B @ (&
1.008 T2 & - BB E
HEEZEBRRAAEMNK
B2 FIAEET44,963,40675
7T ° R UE R B A F R E
BREKEBRDREKRGEE
FEFEIE N -

e R WA=
B AR 3R A A8 X &) 83 5E P B
0i Wah Holding LimitedZ &
EBALHE - MARERART E
179,999,999k & = X 7 F
Kwan Lik Holding Limited °
P 4 W B8 2 3B 1 AR (B R
WEREZEZBHER /A
R EE Wt A[E M
o

—TCFFR

107



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost. The Group was not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group’s strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate
working capital to service its debt obligations.
As at 28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012,
the Group’s debt ratio, being the Group's total
liabilities over its total assets, was 29.3% and
27.6% respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kBB IEBAESN  LUBITIIR)

As the core business of the Group is engaged in short-term
secured financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn
loans and mortgage loans, the main risks associated with
its business are credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly
liquid position.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the statement of financial position. The
Group’s credit risk are primarily attributable to its loan
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group have established policies and systems for the
monitoring and control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic
approach in running its business in an efficient way,
including the adoption of internal control procedures
for risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative
basis by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of
quantitative risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group has
adopted internal control procedures including the
identification and evaluation of ownership and
obtaining an accurate valuation of personal property.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio ranging from 50%—-80%, depending on the type
of collateral and the valuation is made at the point of
granting the loan. The maximum exposure of the
credit risk arising from pawn loan business at the end
of each reporting period is the carrying amount of
the pawn loan receivables as stated in the statement
of financial position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

—  Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

—  Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

—  Watches quoted from either retail listed prices
or parallel import wholesale prices

—  Consumer electronic products quoted from
updated pricelists of second-hand consumer
electronic products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in
repayment of the pawn loan if they have not
redeemed the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by
the end of the term of the pawn loan. At the
Group's sole discretion, a grace period of up to six
weeks may be provided to customers after the end of
the loan period during which the Group may allow
the customers to renew the pawn loan and/or
redeem the collateral. The Group will take possession
of the collateral if the customer has not redeemed
the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by the end
of the loan period or the grace period provided.
Repossessed assets are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(k) and
the carrying amount of repossessed assets as at 28
February 2013 was $5,215,024 (2012: $6,869,020).
The Group will proceed to dispose the collateral
within a reasonable time after possession.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of
risk management, the Group usually grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property, which is
generally lower than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for
mortgages which can be as high as 70%. For the
valuation of the property, the Group will make
reference to either a third party valuer or the internet
valuation services provided by banks in Hong Kong.
The Group holds collateral against loan receivables in
the form of mortgages over property. The Group
considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by
the property held as collateral, with reference to the
estimated market value of the property at the grant
date. The Group may take possession of assets held
as collateral through court proceeding or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers. It disposes
the property by auction once receiving the
possession.

Management has overall responsibility for the Group’s
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the
Group's loan portfolio. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of loans and
receivables individually or collectively at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from loans and
advances are set out in note 13.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

The Group’s policy requires the reviews of individual
financial assets that are above materiality thresholds
on semi-annual basis. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an
evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the
reporting period on a case-by-case basis, and are
applied to all individually significant accounts. The
assessment normally encompasses collateral held and
the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
During the year ended 28 February 2013,
management assessed that no mortgage loan was
determined to be impaired (2012: Nil).

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are
provided for (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that
are not assessed individually; and (ii) losses incurred
but not yet identified, by using the historical loss
experience, experienced judgment and statistical
techniques to provide.

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rate and foreign
exchange currency rates.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risk or the currencies in which it
manages and measures the risk throughout for
relevant period.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank loans and overdrafts. Bank loans and overdrafts
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

BENEXERERARAR

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

AEBEBXRATEATFFENB
EFrERBEENSHEE - B
BEGAEENERRERTS
MR RTEE ZFE  &F
iR E B2 R (E BR P 2 R B B
HoAMBEERRBE KRR
LA X & Bl 8k Pz 78 HR 7] Uk | 3R
H-BE_FT—=F"_A=-1+N
HIEFE  EEEFGHMEILS
BHERETARBECE =
Fm) o

AEBEBEEERLR K&
LB H A RS ET BT BL() I
EEMNFEcRABEEASG R
(NEEEERARBAZBEE
HRFEZBERES -

7R 65 18 5 7% X B E B 0 A 3R K S
EEXZEH 2 SRER -

RAGRESTED SRR
REEA KB FrE bR 2T 5 E R
FHER2E¥UNGTERR 2
FARBEEERELEZS -

AEEZHERREZRBRT
ERNMBEX - WEBMREL 2
RITERARBEBXEARE AT
TRENERER -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

The Group’s interest rate positions arise from
lending activities. Interest rate risk primarily
results from the timing differences in the
repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities and
commitments. It also relates to positions from
non-interest bearing liabilities including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well
as from loans and liabilities.

Certain of the Group’s loan receivables and
bank loans and overdrafts are at fixed rate.
Although subject to interest rate risk, they are
not remeasured in the financial statements in
response to changes in interest rates and
therefore changes in interest rate risk variables
would not affect reported profit or loss in the
short term.

At 28 February 2013, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $540,582 (2012: $294,319).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %% 3R & ki 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB EEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

24 Financial risk management and fair value 24 BB EMGEEBRAFEE)

(continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) TIZEMEERE)
Currency risk B b
The Group does not hold any material net positions RZZE—=F-"A=+N\H ' &%
or net statement positions in foreign currencies as at B mASNE R B E R FFH
28 February 2013 (2012: Nil). BEREHREFRE(CE—ZF:

) o

() Liquidity risk management (0 HRHELEIRER
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity AEE2BER/TERAERER
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing BSHEEURRGETER B
covenants, to ensure it maintains sufficient reserves of BERZFE  UERHEARBEHZE
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from SREARKRETZSHEE
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity TREEREESEE  UENTE
requirements in the short and long term. ErzRHAERRARDHESTE -
The following table details the remaining contractual TRFRAEERBEBHZRE
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's AR ReRE(BERE
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual AR XL (NEZE)REBERER
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments BT MEFE2ME)GTEZ
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based TRABBEZRBSNHR UK
on rates current at the reporting date) and the AEBEAEREEARE L XFH
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: B -

As at 28 February 2013
R-¥-=4-A=+)\H

More than 1 More than 2

Total contractual year but less years but less
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year or than than  More than 5
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years years

EHEES 355 R1ER 1ENE 2ENE
IREE ERESRH HHEX BOR2E BYR5E SEE

H $ $

Accruals and other payables B ERREMERNKE 5,559,385 5,559,385 5,559,385 — - -
Bank loans and overdrafts ROERREX 68,513,447 69,163,623 69,163,623 - - -
Obligations under finance leases B & € & & 353,895 372,400 178,752 178,752 14,896 -
74,426,727 75,095,408 74,901,760 178,752 14,896 -

114 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited REMEEEERERAR]



Notes to the Financial Statements B4 %5 iR R Fi st

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 Financial risk management and fair value

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Total contractual
Carrying undiscounted cash

amount flow.

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

24 BHEABREERAFESE)

(0 RHELEABEESE)

As at 29 February 2012
RZZE-Z#-A=ThHE
More than 1 year More than 2 years
Within 1 year or but less than 2 but less than 5 More than 5
on demand years years years
MER 1N £ 2
% BoR2%E BARSE SEN

Accruals and other payables B ERREMERNKE 2,427,606 2,427,606 2,427,606 — — —
Bank loans and overdrafts RIOTERRES 3,351,737 3,363,316 3,363,316 = = =
Obligations under finance leases B & € & & 511,740 551,152 178,752 178,752 193,648 =
Amounts due to shareholders ERRERE 41,958,064 41,958,064 = = = 41,958,064
48,249,147 48,300,138 5,969,674 178,752 193,648 41,958,064

Fair value d) AFE{E

Financial instruments carries at fair value

The Group's financial instruments carries at fair value
presents the carrying value of financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant
input is not based on observable market data
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 53R R sF

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

24 Financial risk management and fair value 24 BB EGEBRAFEE(E

(continued)

(d) Fair value (continued) d) 2XFELE)
Financial instruments carries at fair value (continued) KAFEINEZZHTA(E)
All the financial instruments carried at fair value are FIELAAFEIEZEFITAS
trading securities and categorised in Level 1. REERZRS UHBERE—M-
Throughout the vyear, there were no significant 2FEMETARE-RRE_H
transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. 2 EETERE R -
Except for the above financial instruments, BRLiiemIT AN BEEER
management consider that the carrying amounts of R RAREM B RR AR EE
the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at KAFNEs2eRMEEREHBE
amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements JEEEBEEEATEMES

approximate their fair value.

25 Operating lease commitments 25 HEHERKIE
Operating lease commitments EEHERIE
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under REERBETTHELERE 2
non-cancellable operating leases of properties are payable ERARRREESETENAT
as follows:
28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—E-=% —T——F
—A=+N\H —A=-+AhH
$ $
Within one year —F R 7,322,272 5,479,110
After one year but within five years —F & ERAFR 6,697,427 5,023,499
14,019,699 10,502,609
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEEREBEEEHERNAZEADE -
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to —mE HE TSR ABI1ESF -
5 years. Lease payments are usually increased at the end of HEFRBABRERHERERE LR
the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of the leases MWRBEMZHES - MEAESEXA
includes contingent rentals. e o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %R &R B sE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BEAEIN  LABITTIIR)

26 Material related party transactions 26 EXFAESRRXS
During the year, transactions with the following parties are REARA BTIEZEHZRIERRE
considered to be related party transactions: EHARS:

Name of party

FERER

Mr. Chan Chart Man

PR 3R XX 5B

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward

PR R % 5t

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PR 3 £ =

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

REFLL

Ms. Chan Nga Yu

BRAEm 2+

Ms. Chan Kit Yu

BRRm L+

Ms. Mui Hang Sin

BEMLZ L

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion

BREER ST A

Relationship with the Group
HAEEZHARE

Director and one of the controlling equity owners of the
Company

ARREEREBRERBEEAZ—

Director, one of the controlling equity owners of the Company
and son of Mr. Chan Chart Man

ARBEERERESEEAZ - MREXAEEZRT

Director, one of the controlling equity owners of the Company
and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

ARREERERESHEEA - MREXEEZ LR

Director, one of the controlling equity owners of the Company
and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

ARBAEELERESEAEAZ - MREXEEZ LA

One of the controlling equity owners of the Company and
daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man
RAREREZEBEAZ " RRRERXEEZLR

One of the controlling equity owners of the Company and
daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

ARBEBREEERAEAI - RBRRXEEZLR

One of the controlling equity owners of the Company and
spouse of Mr. Chan Chart Man

ARBEBREREBEAZ-RBREXEEZERE

Son of Mr. Chan Chart Man
PRER SR E 2 7T
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(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26 EXFEARARXS(E)

26 Material related party transactions

(continued)

Name of party

Relationship with the Group

ERER

Chart Keung Building Contractors Ltd.
("Chart Keung”)

REBZEAERAA(RRD

Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Ltd.
(“Kwan Chart Holding"”)

EXSEBERAB(EREE)
Kwan Chart Estate Company Ltd.
(“Kwan Chart Estate”)

EREXERARMIEREE])

Smart Hero Industries Ltd.
(“Smart Hero")

FEREXERAATER])

Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan, Solicitors
("Chow C.L.")

JB = 37 FR RRER PR — 3B 2 Bl B RS FT
(A= ZMEBAT]

Kwan Lik Holding Limited

Kwan Lik Holding Limited

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

BAREZE

Jointly-controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man and Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward

H R 3 30 58 A T R R SR 5E A LR

Controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man

B PR 2R 3Lk A 2

Controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man

A PR B 3L % A 2

Jointly controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan
Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin

HRREXEE RS EE BRERMLZT  BREFZT K
HEZ T - BRR\ L+ RIEEWLZ T HREES

Under significant influence of Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion

EREBMRELEZEAFE

Immediate holding company and jointly controlled by Mr.
Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying
Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit
Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin

BEEERAR  YHARKXEE BREREREE  REBL
T BREFZL BRERZLT REMLZTRESIWNLLT
H 7] 42 i

Rt EFBRREMETDARE 2R

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered HREHRI AKBEERILTIERX
into the following material related party transactions: FAET RS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@) EEZEANSFHM

Remuneration for

employees as disclosed in note 10.

key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Group’s directors is
disclosed in note 9, and certain of the highest paid

FEERABFH(BEIMNTA
SEESZRE)EENWF
METHE=EEFHMAEERN
B EE10 ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BEAEIN  LABITTIIR)

26 Material related party transactions 26 EXFAERXSH(E)
(continued)
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) EIEMEAEFRXS

During the year, the Group entered into transactions
with related parties in the ordinary course of its
business as follows:

28 February

2013
—B—=%
—A=+/\H
$
Maintenance fee paid to SN FRBZEEE
Chart Keung 42,500

Legal fee paid to Chow C.L. Xt FRAEZEHEKFT

ZEREER 67,875
Rental expense paid to XNFURTEFZ2HERAX
— Kwan Chart Holding — E2%X5E 480,000
— Kwan Chart Estate —E2XEX 471,000
— Mr. Chan Chart Man — BREXEE 480,000

RER AEBEREBFEEHB
RPEBESILZRBUNT:

29 February
2012
—EFT——fF
—AZ=+hH
$

102,000

157,310

480,000
480,000
460,000

Chart Keung provided maintenance service for all the

RBANREMEAREERNHA

pawnshops and office of the Group. ERRMHBERTE -

Chow C.L. provided legal services for mortgage

BFEIRMEBMARNEE R

business of the Group. B ES RS EEZRE -

The directors consider that all related party
transactions during the year were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business.

E=ZRR RERAZMBRAES
REDB—BREEERRIRNAEE
BERk—MEBBETET

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF3f

119
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26 Material related party transactions
(continued)
(c) Balances with other related parties
At end of the year, the Group had the following
balances with related parties:

(BB AL ABTTHIR)

26 EXFEELXH(E)

(c)

HHEMBAERZER
RER  AEBEHERBATERRE

TR

28 February

29 February

2013 2012
—E-=% —E—F
—A=+/\H —A=-+tAhH
$ $
Amounts due from a related JFE LA 2 3 A R 5K IE
company
— Smart Hero — ExR — 2,890,000

The balance with the related company was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance is
included in trade and other receivables (see note 15).

HEBEARICEBRRELNT 2

BERmERERE -

EEBIIAE S

Ko B Al & Wk B (RS RE15) ©

28 February

29 February

2013 2012
—F-=% —E——F
—A=+/\H
$
Amounts due to shareholders FE AR 3R IR
— Mr. Chan Chart Man — BREXEE — 39,358,064
— Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward —BREERTE — 2,600,000

ENBRRFRBERNTAKEZ
RBe UBAKEZEERHEE
T BNBRRFBBZEHRER
Z-—=ZF_ARBEBEITAR
A—RMBARzEBRAEN (R
B 3 23(d)(ii)) ©

The amounts due to shareholders represent cash
advances to the Group to finance the Group’s
operations. The balances of the amounts due to
shareholders were settled by the issuance of ordinary
shares of a subsidiary of the Company on 5 February
2013 (see note 23(d)(ii)).
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26 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Personal guarantee deposits provided to the bank
in respect of the Group’s banking facilities

Mr. Chan Chart Man PR SR
Ms. Mui Hang Sin 1AL 2+

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

26

EXHAELRXH(E)
(d) HARBBITAIE/PRITZ

BAERER

28 February

29 February

2013 2012
—EB—-=f —E—_F
—A=+/\H —A=-+AhH
$ $

4,530,000 5,030,000
2,500,000 3,000,000

The directors of the Company have confirmed that
the personal guarantee deposits have been
subsequently released and replaced by a corporate
guarantee by the Company upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange (see note
31(c)).

Personal guarantees provided to the bank in
respect of the Group’s banking facilities

(e)

ARREEHR  EHEAER
fr R E R ERANRE R 0 B X
PfT £ T 1% 8 BR 30 AR R R R
Z R BRI (R M EE31() ©

RERBERITHASRETRT
@A & &

28 February

29 February

2013 2012
—E—=% —ET—=F
—A=+N\H —RA=t+AH
$ $
Jointly guaranteed by Mr. Chan PR 5% 3 5t A BBR B SR 5E
Chart Man and Mr. Chan Kai EREZBEER
Ho Edward 83,760,000 5,000,000
The directors of the Company have confirmed that AATEEWRD  AEEAER

the personal guarantees have been subsequently
released and replaced by a corporate guarantee by
the Company upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (see note 31(c)).

HBERARQT RDER AT L
TR ARDF AR 2 A
A REVKR (R 3E31(0) ©

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF3f
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB EEAEIN  LUBTTIIR)

26 Material related party transactions 26 EXFAERXSH(E)
(continued)
(f) Personal guarantees provided to landlord in (f) FAEEVEHRLOETREZE
respect of the Group’s rental of premises AR
28 February 29 February
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E—C—F
—RA=+/N\H —A=-+AhH
$ $
Mr. Chan Chart Man PR X & 745,800 1,462,600
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward PR BRI 5% 58 & 3,616,860 1,914,866
The rental guarantees are provided to the landlords in AEERBREEREANMEE
respect of the Group’s pawnshops lease contracts. REBESER - ERVEESLH
The guarantees mature at the end of the related ERERE -
contracts.

27 Investments in subsidiaries and amount 27 PHBATZIRE RFEF—
due to a subsidiary Bl EBATFIE

The Company
¥ AN

28 February
2013

—E—-=%
—A=+/\8
$

Unlisted shares, at cost K EWRRD - AR 57,063,506

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BRIEHEEEXRAR AR
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27

Investments in subsidiaries and amount

due to a subsidiary (continued)
At 28 February 2013, the Company has direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
private companies, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of company

AEEHE

Oi Wah Holding Limited

Oi Wah Holding Limited

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited

BEREXEEARARA

Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited

RERXEFEERRAA

Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited

BEREXEEERAA

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
=ML
R B R B #

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")
31 May 2012
REBRZHS
(EBRLER]
—E—=F

BA=+—H

Hong Kong
22 March 2000
B

[

&

TZEE
A=+

S|

Hong Kong
12 April 2012
BB
—E——-F
MA+=H

Hong Kong
12 April 2012
BE
T
MA+=H

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

27

Issued and fully paid
up capital/registered

capital
EBTRUEESR
H2EHEE

2,000 ordinary shares
with no par value

2,000/ & A E
ZEB R

10,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,000,000/% & A&
EEIBTZERR

1 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

R EREENE T
ZE R R

1 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
R EREENE T

Amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

RMBASZHREREFF—
EMEBASIRIE(E)
RZE—=F_A=+N\H, AKRFRNT
FIMBAR(2HBERLARTESR
B HEERERD  SFBEHNOAT:
Attributable equity Principal
interest activities
& 16 B 7 4 25 ETEEH
Direct Indirect
H# i
100% — Investment
holding
100% = K& 2R
= 100% Pawn broking and
money lending
= 100% LR N R E
= 100% Pawn broking and
money lending
= 100% HELLERRE
= 100% Pawn broking and
money lending
— 100% BB R RE
ER—EHEBARIRERERR 2
BRBREREER -
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=4F4#§ 12 3
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28

29

30

Key sources of estimation and uncertainty
Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan
portfolio is impaired. Objective evidence for impairment is
described in accounting policy 2(j). Historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of the current observable data.
Management reviews the methodology and assumptions
used in estimating impairment losses regularly to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Immediate and ultimate holding company
At 28 February 2013, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Kwan Lik
Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
Interpretations and two new standards which are not yet
effective for the year and which have not been adopted in
the financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBIE#E(z E4EiAR AF]

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

28

29

30

BT ERRERFAAER
% 18 5 48

£ 2, 12 #4 2
= A NE=T

ERAeeEHmE T HBES
BREFE AKERREFEMEW
EBEEBRBRTERASEEEELH

B - BEZEREZERETEER2)5

e BEFEBLBRENBRT B R
BIELFAE - EEET BB HETR
BEEEMRBZAERBR WD
EEAGFRERBELCR CEMEL -

ERERRZRIER
RZZE—=F-_A=+N\B BEFR
ROARAZEEREEERRAR
R R 2 B S MK L 2 Kwan  Lik
Holding Limited ° It & 883 AR RN
BERAZHBRE -

E 5F i B i R £ 3% 2 18 5T
TR RREZBAER

BEVKHRRELBY  HE S
REERMEERARFALERER
RMBEHRRENZETRZERMIEA
MEQ o WEHEEBF - 2BRERER
T REREAEEMBHZEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BEAEIN  LABITTIIR)

30 Possible impact of amendments, new 30
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

BRI B EVREIT ARG FH L 25
Aty 2 H Wz HE 2 25

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

BN RS ERFE10RA S Y HFHEX

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

ERMERREHRZERT
AR RERECBEAERNE
(%)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUTBEHHZE
Fis 2 Est &K

1 July 2012

22—+ H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%F—H—H

1 January 2013

RIEFTBE ST ERE1SRESEN —ZE—=%—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments.: Disclosures Offsetting 1 January 2013
financial assets and financial liabilities

ERAVBRESENRIRETALH LA - —T—=%—H—H

BHTHMEERTHBEEZ KE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BN REEYNFESR M TA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s result of operations and financial
position except for HKFRS 9. The Group is presently
studying the implications of applying HKFRS 9 but it is
impracticable to quantify its effect as at the date of
publication of these consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2015
—E-—h¥—H—H

AEERIFEZFEITRBEER
ERURABEEZTZE - 2581
HEHRABRMZFEFT TAAESARE
BREXERMBIRABEREATE
HEFBM RS LA BRI - K&
EEREEMREEMBERELEDEI
HeRE ERZXEFEAVFTRET
HEMDAREEREEEAZERE -

Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=4F4#§
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf %3k & B &%

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and establishes
new principles for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. In December 2010, the HKICPA issued
additions to HKFRS 9 dealing with financial liabilities. The
main changes to the requirements of HKAS 39 are
summarised below:

All financial assets are classified into two measurement
categories: amortised cost or fair value on the basis of both
an entity’s business model for managing groups of financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
individual assets. These two categories replace the four
categories under the current HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and Measurements.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or
loss, if they do not meet the criteria specified for
measurement at amortised cost or if doing so significantly
reduces or eliminates an accounting mismatch. An entity has
the option to designate all subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity instrument not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income with no recycling of
gains or losses to the income statement. Dividend income
would continue to be recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets which contain embedded derivatives are to
be classified in their entirely either at fair value or
amortised cost depending on whether the contracts as a
whole meet the relevant criteria under HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 9 retains all the existing requirements for
derecognition of financial instruments and most of the
requirements for financial liabilities, except that for financial
liabilities designated under the fair value option other than
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, fair
value changes attributable to changes in own credit risk are
to be presented in the statement of other comprehensive
income, and are not subsequently reclassified to income
statement but may be transferred within equity.

BENEXERERARAR

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

BEAUBRELENEIREN_ZTNF
+—REM TV EBEESMEED
BERFAEZHRE - HEESFAMAE
RZZE—ZF+_AEGBEBYBE R
EREBFOH 2] UEECHAE
HEEE BB EAFE395 2R
EZEZEZFHPumT:

METREERBEREEIREE
MRz XBRARBREEZAHNR
ERBFHORMETERR - BHK
AXAFE - ZMEENRKERNE
BERTEREIRL M T A R LK
ERTZOERR -

MEMBEL AN TRRBHKAE
ZEEEAKMIZ A FEFEBARE
BRISEGREER  MIeREE
BEZAVEFARZ ERAEESE
HERIERXZABE CBRATARR 2
MBERTFEZBEE SRR FEET
AEMmEEEA - MABRERTAR
mRAZEBE - KRB RE K EENK
mERAFER -

BERABMITETAZEREERTHR
BRRRATFERBHEKAGTE B
FTERAHNEOANAETEUBREE
A5k < HREERIME -

EEPGREEAEIORRBTHAL
LRREMIAZAERE HRE
TABHEMEMEBEZ BT - EH
EEREATERERAEZSME
B (ERAER M BERA ORI
RERASEERARS (LI AT

i

BEZHARZHMZALARED
RAEFDBRERRR - BREANE

/|

mAEBZRERI
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30 Possible impact of amendments, new

31

standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015 with earlier adoption permitted. The
HKICPA decided to consider making limited amendments to
HKFRS 9 to address practice and other issues. The proposal
in respect of classification and measurement for assets and
liabilities and impairment loss is out for consultation in
November 2012 until end of March 2013. The Group has
commenced the process of evaluating the potential effect
of this standard but is awaiting finalisation of the limited
amendments before the evaluation can be completed.
Given the nature of the Group’s operations, this standard is
expected to have an impact on the Group’s results of
operation and state of affairs.

Subsequent events
The following significant events took place subsequent to
28 February 2013:

(@) Listing of the Company’s shares

On 12 March 2013, the shares of the Company
became listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to which 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of $0.01 each were issued at a price of $0.98
per share by the Company. Of the total gross
proceeds of $98,000,000 received, $1,000,000
representing the par value was credited to the
Company’s share capital and the remaining of
$97,000,000, before the share issue expenses, was
credited to the share premium account.

(RSB EAEIN  ABTTHIR)

30 EMRMEREKRENZIERT

31

HEIEARRBREZCEBESE
(%)

BERMBMEENFIRR=T—RF
—B—HBskz&FArR2FEHBER
WARERM - BB SHAATRTE
HEBY B REEBNEIFELERE
B3] MEBRITREMET - BEE
EREEARREEEBZ2ERNE
LEBR_E——F+—HAE=ZT—=
FZAEPREEZES AEBERB
FELERZEESE  HNEFE
BHEREBEIRKEE A A TKT
HeZBERAEB2EBMELD 58
ERFEHEAER 2 CEEERMKR

5/ 48
BRE-

GHBEEIR
THERFER-F—=F-A=FN
B 58 A -

(@) FATKMHz L™
R-T—=F=FA+—"H  KAQH
BROEBZFER LM - Bt
AR BA T RR0.9878 7T 2 B 1% 3%
£7100,000,0008% & X EI{E0.01/%
T2 ERA - RURELZ FTiS 4B
%898,000,000/8% Tt F - @ &
1,000,000 LAt AR R B R AN -
i %l £2 97,000,000 7T (R 5HA% 1D
BT SR BIGTA RS R ERR ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

31

Subsequent events (continued)

(b)

(c)

Capitalisation issue

Upon the completion of the public offering and
placing of the Company’s shares on 12 March 2013,
the Company capitalised an amount of $2,900,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in
full at par of 290,000,000 shares, each of which to
be allotted and issued to the shareholder of the
Company appearing on the register of members of
the Company on 19 February 2013 in proportion to
their respective shareholdings.

Financial guarantee issued

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the
personal guarantee deposits and personal guarantees
provided to the banks in respect of the banking
facilities granted to wholly owned subsidiaries were
subsequently released and replaced by corporate
guarantees by the Company upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SBIE#E(z E4EiAR AF]

(BB HEAEIN  ABTTHIR)

31

SEBEEIAE

(b)

(c)

EE(LEETT
RZE—=F=A+HEKAR
AREIRO  AHRBEEREER K
NEIEARB D R ERR 2 ERE
FKIE2,900,0008 L HEFTEAR - 75
EAEBEBRIBLABERRAR
290,000,000/% % 7 + B B8 ix 0
BEN-_ZE—=F_A+NAB%
1N A7 /NG i i NG
RBEE 2RO mH SRR
AT o

ERHZHBRER
RBERREERER  HAETE2E
MEBARZRITREFIZE TR
T2 EAERTFRRMEAERE
BRARABRMDEB I AERE
Mg BRI AARRF Rt 2
AIFERENA -
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